
 

City of Alvin, Texas  
 

Paul Horn, Mayor 
 

Keith Thompson, Mayor Pro-tem, District C Adam Arendell, District B 
Brad Richards, At Large Pos. 1 Glenn Starkey, District D 
Joel Castro, At Large Pos. 2 Gabe Adame, District E 
Scott Reed, District A  

 
 

ALVIN CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  

THURSDAY OCTOBER 4, 2018 

 7:00 P.M.  
 (Council Chambers) 

 

Alvin City Hall, 216 West Sealy, Alvin, Texas 77511 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting that will require special services please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 281-388-4255 or 
droberts@cityofalvin.com 48 hours prior to the meeting time.  City Hall is wheel chair accessible and a sloped curb entry is available at the east and 
west entrances to City Hall.  
 

NOTICE is hereby given of a Regular Meeting and Executive Session of the City Council of the City 
of Alvin, Texas, to be held on THURSDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers at: City Hall, 216 W. Sealy, Alvin, Texas. 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Oath of Office – Presiding Municipal Court Judge. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Second Public hearing on the Strategic Partnership Agreement for the Walton Development, 
more formally described as Brazoria County Municipal Utility Districts (MUD) 48 & MUD 
49. 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: An item(s) may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for full discussion by the request of a member of Council.  Item(s) removed will automatically 
become the first item up for discussion under Other Business. 

 
A. Consider approval of the September 20, 2018 City Council meeting minutes. 

 
B. Consider Ordinance 18-Q, discontinuing 817.85 acres of land, more or less, more particularly 

described in Exhibit A (formally described as Brazoria County Municipal Utility Districts 
(MUD) 48 & MUD 49); jurisdictionally annexing 4.51 acres of land, more or less, consisting 
of a five (5) foot wide strip of land, more particularly described in Exhibit B; providing for 
open meetings, and other related matters – first reading. 

 
C. Consider Ordinance 18-N, amending Chapter 25, Water and Sewers, for the purpose of 

amending the City’s current Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan and 
modifying the Impact Fee Schedule based on the 2018 Land Use Assumptions and Capital 
Improvements Plan and 2018 Impact Fee Study; setting an effective date of November 1, 
2018 for the increase in fees; and setting forth other provisions related thereto.  

mailto:droberts@cityofalvin.com


AGENDA - 2 -                                          October 4, 2018 

 
D. Consider Resolution 18-R-35, amending the conditions to consent regarding Fort Bend 

County Municipal Utility District No. 189; and other matters related thereto.   
 
E. Consider an award of bid to Commercial Chemical Products for the purchase of Sodium 

Bisulfite for one (1) year with the option to extend for one year at the same terms and 
conditions, for an estimated total of $25,000 per year.  
 

7. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Consider an On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement with TDEC Inc. as the 

primary contractor, and an On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement with DM 
Electrical and Construction LLC, as the secondary contractor, to provide on-call professional 
electrical services for a term of two (2) years; and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
agreements upon legal review. 

 
B. Consider an award of bid to Precise Services, Inc., for the South Park Drive Pavement and 

Drainage Project in an amount not to exceed $691,569.06; and authorize the City Manager 
to sign the contract upon legal review. 

 
C. Consider an award of bid to Greenscapes Six, LLC., for the 2018-2019 Concrete Repair 

Program, in an amount not to exceed $200,000 for a term of one (1) year with an option to 
renew for one (1) year with the same terms and conditions; and authorize the City Manager 
to sign the contract subject to legal review. 

 
8. REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  

 
A. Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 

 
9. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Pursuant to 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code reports or an announcement about items of community interest during a 
meeting of the governing body. No action will be taken or discussed. 
 
A. Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council 

members, and City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   
 

10. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

City Council will meet in Executive Session pursuant to:  
 

A. Texas Government Code Section 551.074 – to deliberate the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee. 
 

1. City Attorney Evaluation. 
 

11. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

A. Take action on Executive Session item if necessary.   
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

I hereby certify that a copy of this notice was posted on the City Hall bulletin board, a place convenient and readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and to the City’s website: www.alvin-tx.gov, in compliance with Chapter 
551, Texas Government Code on MONDAY, October 1, 2018 at 4:00 P.M.  
        ________________________________ 

 (SEAL)       Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/


AGENDA - 3 -                                          October 4, 2018 

 
 

Removal Date:______________________ 

** All meetings of the City Council are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to meet in Executive Session (closed to the public) under 
the provisions of Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. The Council reserves the right to convene into executive session on any of the above posted 
agenda items that qualify for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable section of the Open Meetings Act, including but not limited 
to sections 551.071 (litigation and certain consultation with the attorney), 551.072 (acquisition of interest in real property), 551.073 (contract for gift to 
city), 551.074 (certain personnel deliberations), or 551.087 (qualifying economic development negotiations). 





MINUTES 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS 

  216 W. SEALY STREET 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AND 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

THURSDAY SEPTEMBER 20, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

BE IT REMEMBERED that, on the above date, the City Council of the City of Alvin, Texas, met in 
a Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City Hall, with the following members 
present: Mayor Pro-Tem Keith Thompson; Council members: Gabe Adame, Joel Castro, Scott Reed, 
and Glenn Starkey. 
 
Staff members present: Junru Roland, City Manager/CFO; Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney; Dixie 
Roberts, City Secretary; Dan Kelinske, Parks and Recreation Director, Brian Smith, Director of Public 
Services and Robert E. Lee, Police Chief. 

 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Judy Zavalla gave the invocation.   
 

Council member Castro led the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Council member Reed 
led the Pledge to the Texas Flag. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Eugene Bauer spoke before City Council about listing inactive boards and commissions on the city’s 
website. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

Robert E. Lee, Chief of Police presented the annual update for the Police Department. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Consider the approval of the September 6, 2018 City Council meeting minutes. 
 

Consider approval of the September 13, 2018 Special City Council meeting minutes. 
 

Consider Resolution 18-R-28, adopting the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 City of Alvin Investment Policy; 
providing for an effective date; and setting forth other related matters. 
Pursuant to Chapter 2256.005 of the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA), the governing body of an investing entity 
shall review its investment policy and strategies not less than annually.  The City’s current Investment Policy has been 
certified by the Government Treasurers’ Organization of Texas (GTOT) as meeting the requirements of the Public Funds 
Investment Act.  As a result, for fiscal year 2018-19, staff is not recommending any revisions to the City’s current 
investment policy. 
 
Consider a bid award to Brenntag Southwest, Inc. to purchase Sodium Hypochlorite for one (1) year, 
with the option to extend for one year at the same terms and conditions, for an estimated total of 
$60,000; and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract upon legal review. 
Sodium Hypochlorite chemical is used to disinfect effluent (treated wastewater) from the City’s wastewater treatment 
plant.   On August 14, 2018, bids were opened and Brenntag Southwest Inc. was the lowest qualified bidder for Sodium 
Hypochlorite at $.7675 per gallon.  The projected annual cost for Sodium Hypochlorite in FY18 at $.7675 per gallon is 
$60,000. Last year, $58,780 was spent on Sodium Hypochlorite at $.77 per gallon.  Upon Council approval an award 
letter will be sent to vendor and City departments.  
 
Consider Resolution 18-R-30, finding that Texas New Mexico Power Company’s (“TNMP”) 
application to change rates within the City should be denied; finding that the City’s reasonable rate 



MINUTES - 2 -                                 September 20, 2018 

 
case expenses shall be reimbursed by the company; finding that the meeting at which this resolution 
is passed is open to the public as required by law; requiring notice of this resolution to the company 
and legal counsel. 
The City of Alvin is a member of the Gulf Coast Coalition of Cities (GCCC), a coalition of cities known alternatively as 
the Cities Served by Texas-New Mexico Power Company (“TNMP Cities”). TNMP Cities has been an important interest 
advocating before the Public Utility Commission and the Courts on electric utility regulation matters for a number of 
years. 
 
On May 30, 2018, Texas-New Mexico Power Company (“TNMP” or “Company”) filed an application to change rates 
with cities retaining original jurisdiction.  In the filing, the Company sought to increase system-wide transmission and 
distribution rates by $33.3 million, or approximately 16.6% over present revenues.  This equated to a 23.4% increase in 
residential rates and a 11.8% increase in street lighting rates.  If approved, monthly rates would increase by 
approximately $12.21 for an average residential customer. 
 
In May 2018, TNMP Cities engaged the services of two consultants, Mr. Lane Kollen and Mr. Richard Baudino, to review 
the Company’s filing.  The consultants identified numerous unreasonable expenses and proposed significant reductions 
to the Company’s request.  Accordingly, the TNMP Cities’ attorneys recommend that all members adopt the Resolution 
denying the rate change.  Once the Resolution is adopted, TNMP will have 30 days to appeal the decision to the Public 
Utility Commission of Texas, where the appeal will be consolidated with TNMP’s filing (i.e., PUC Docket No. 48401) 
currently pending at the Commission. 
 
The law permits the City to suspend the rate change for 90 days after the date the rate change would otherwise be effective.  
In accordance with the law, on June 21, 2018, Council passed Resolution 18-R-22 suspending the July 5, 2018 effective 
date of Texas-New Mexico Power Company’s (TNMP’s) requested rate change.  Under a pending settlement between 
parties (including TNMP Cities) and TNMP, the Company’s request is substantially reduced.  Under the proposed 
settlement, the Company would be permitted a $10 million increase, or approximately a 6.6% increase in its revenues.  
This would result in a 9.9% increase to residential rates and no increase to street lighting rates.  However, that settlement 
remains in the process of being finalized.  The requested Council action is therefore denial of TNMP’s original, $33.3 
million proposed increase.   
 
Consider Interlocal Agreement with Brazoria County for the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Asphalt 
Improvement Project; and authorize the Mayor to sign upon legal review. 
The proposed Interlocal Agreement between the City and the County provides the mechanisms for the County to provide 
the City of Alvin with equipment and personnel to assist in the construction, improvement, maintenance and/or repair of 
two miles of asphalt streets in various locations within the city limits of Alvin. The City of Alvin entered into this 
partnership with Brazoria County in 1991, and has continued to use the program since that time. This program provides 
for low cost paving and rehabilitation of asphalt streets and has improved over 34 miles of asphalt streets since the start 
in 1991. In the last four years, the program has achieved the rehabilitation and paving of 74,000 linear feet of asphalt or 
13 miles, averaging 2.3325 miles per year. 
 
Should City Council authorize this agreement, staff will make recommendations of streets to be serviced using the Asphalt 
Street Assessment.  This agreement has already been approved and signed by the Brazoria County Judge, L.M. “Matt” 
Sebesta. 
 
Consider annual windstorm renewal from Victor O. Schinnerer & Company, Inc. in an amount not to 
exceed $163,128.02, for the City of Alvin windstorm and hail coverage for FY19; and authorize the 
City Manager to sign the Proposal Acceptance Form.   
Windstorm insurance is property and casualty insurance that specifically covers loss due to damage by high winds:  i.e., 
hurricane and hail damage.  The City’s general property and liability insurance provider (Texas Municipal League – 
Intergovernmental Risk Pool [TMLIRP]) does not provide full windstorm and hail coverage for all city facilities.  
Currently, TMLIRP only provides windstorm coverage through their Coastal Storm Fund for wind resistive facilities, 
which includes City Hall, the Alvin Museum, and the Wastewater Treatment Building.  However, TMLIRP has an 
arrangement with Victor O. Schinnerer & Company, Inc. (VOSCO), an underwriting manager of professional liability 
and specialty insurance, to serve as the City’s insurance agent in placing windstorm coverage.  VOSCO has written the 
City’s windstorm coverage through various companies since 10/01/2000.  The current (annual) windstorm policy with 
VOSCO expires October 1, 2018.   
 
VOSCO canvassed the open marketplace and approached 17 different carriers on behalf of the City of Alvin. Each carrier 
modeled and reviewed multiple layers (i.e., primary, buffers, and excess), as well as various terms (deductibles, extensions 



MINUTES - 3 -                                 September 20, 2018 

 
of coverage, etc.) in an attempt to yield the most competitive placement available.  Of the 17 carriers that were 
approached, 6 declined to submit a proposal, 5 carriers only offered excess coverage, with the remaining carriers offering 
outrageous deductibles and/or high premiums.   VOSCO did not approach Texas Windstorm Insurance Association 
(TWIA) for FY19 because the City has approximately $16 million in scheduled value that would not qualify for coverage 
under TWIA, and TWIA’s annual premium for the limited coverage would be in the ballpark of $160,000. 

 
VOSCO is proposing 2 options: 

 
1. Option 1 – AmRisc Carriers 

a. Total Insurable Value Limit $33.3 million 
b. Deductible   $10,000 per occurrence (wind/hail) 
c. Deductible   $165,000 per occurrence (wind-driven precipitation) 
d. Annual Premium   $163,128.02 

 
2. Option 2 – AmRisc Carriers 

a. Total Insurable Value Limit $33.3 million 
b. Deductible   $25,000 per occurrence (wind/hail) 
c. Deductible   $165,000 per occurrence (wind-driven precipitation) 
d. Annual Premium   $160,429.51 

 
Even though the FY19 annual premium for option #1 is $2,698 more than option #2, the deductible per occurrence for 
option #1 is $15,000 less than option #2.  With that, staff recommends that City Council approve Option #1 for windstorm 
coverage for FY19.  
 
AmRisc currently writes coverage for several entities in Texas, including but not limited to: Dickinson, Manvel, Sweeny, 
Pearland, Bay City, Friendswood, Kemah, Lake Jackson, Oyster Creek, Richwood, and Brazoria. 

 
For FY18 the windstorm coverage for the City included the following: 

a. Total Insurable Value Limit  $32.9 million 
b. Deductible    $10,000 per occurrence (wind/hail) 
c. Annual Premium   $162,713.25 

 
Council member Adame moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Seconded by Council 
member Reed; motion to approve carried on a vote of 5 Ayes. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Consider Ordinance 18-O, adopting the annual budget for the City of Alvin, Texas, for Fiscal Year 
2018-2019; directing the City Secretary to post a copy of the budget on the City of Alvin website; 
and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 
On July 19, 2018, the City Manager presented the FY 2018-2019 proposed budget to City Council. Subsequently, two 
budget workshops were held on August 2, 2018, and August 9, 2018, whereby City Council and staff reviewed the 
proposed budget. 
 
State law and the City’s Charter require that the City enact an annual budget. The City Charter requires that an ordinance 
to establish appropriation must be approved by a favorable vote of a majority of the members of the City Council. 
 
Council member Adame moved to approve Ordinance 18-O, adopting the annual budget for the City 
of Alvin, Texas, for Fiscal Year 2018-2019; directing the City Secretary to post a copy of the budget 
on the City of Alvin website; and setting forth other provisions related thereto; Seconded by Council 
member Starkey; motion to approve carried on a vote of 5 Ayes. 

 
Consider Ordinance 18-P, adopting a tax rate of $0.7880 (the current tax rate), which is effectively a 
3.26 percent increase in the tax rate; and direct the Tax Assessor-Collector to access, account for, and 
distribute the property taxes as herein levied.   
 
 



MINUTES - 4 -                                 September 20, 2018 

 
A taxing unit may not impose property taxes an any year until the governing body has adopted a tax rate for that year, 
and the annual tax rate must be set by ordinance, resolution or order, depending on the method prescribed by law for 
adoption of a law by the governing body.  The vote on the ordinance, resolution, or order setting the tax rate must be 
separate from the vote adopting the budget. 
 
For a taxing unit, other than a school district, the vote on the ordinance, resolution, or order setting a tax rate that 
exceeds the effective tax rate must be a record vote, and at least 60 percent of the members of the governing body must 
vote in favor of the ordinance, resolution, or order. 
 
According to the Texas Tax Code 26.05(b), a motion to adopt an ordinance, resolution, or order setting a tax rate that 
exceeds the effective tax rate must be made in the following form: “I move that the property tax rate be increased by the 
adoption of a tax rate of (specify tax rate), which is effectively a (insert percentage by which the proposed tax rate 
exceeds the effective tax rate) percent increase in the tax rate.” 
 
For Tax Year 2018, staff is proposing that city council adopt a tax rate of $0.7880 per $100 of taxable assessed value, 
which is 3.26% above the 2018 effective tax rate of $0.763094. 

 
Council member Adame stated that this was not a tax increase. 
 
Council member Starkey moved to approve Ordinance 18-P, adopting a tax rate of $0.7880, which is 
effectively a 3.26 percent increase in the tax rate; and direct the Tax Assessor-Collector to access, 
account for, and distribute the property taxes as herein levied.  Seconded by Council member Castro; 
motion to approve carried on a vote of 5 Ayes. 
 
Consider Resolution 18-R-34, revising the Athletic Facilities Policy for use of parks and recreational 
facilities; establishing an effective date; and setting forth other matters related thereto. 
The Athletic Facilities Policy is designed to ensure all City facilities are utilized in a safe and efficient manner.  The 
policy provides priority use of athletic facilities for those associations requiring perpetual use, and provide recreational 
service(s) or to meet a community need.  Recommended changes to this policy occur as necessary and are the result of 
collaborative efforts between the Alvin Sport Associations (ASA), the Parks and Recreation Board, and Parks Department 
staff.  Changes to this policy were previously approved by City Council on March 6, 2014 with Resolution 14-R-05. 
 
On August 7, 2018, a joint meeting was held between the Alvin Sport Associations, the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board, and Parks Department staff, to review and discuss proposed changes to the Athletic Facilities Policy. And on 
September 4, 2018, the Parks and Recreation Board unanimously approved changes to the Athletic Facilities Policy. 
 
The proposed changes to the current Athletic Facilities Policy upon adoption of Resolution 18-R-34 include: 

• Guidance for NON-Alvin Sport Associations to become an Alvin Sport Association (ASA); 
• Requiring all ASAs to conduct background checks on all volunteer or paid employees that interact with youth; 
• Waiving athletic field light usage fee up to eight hours per month per ASA (maximum monthly value $280); and 
• Annual inspection of concession area operated by ASA (where applicable) by Health Inspector and Fire 

Marshal. 
 
Mr. Kelinske reviewed the amendments to the policy. 
 
Council member Reed moved to approve Resolution 18-R-34, revising the Athletic Facilities Policy 
for use of parks and recreational facilities; establishing an effective date; and setting forth other 
matters related thereto.  Seconded by Council member Starkey; motion to approve carried on a vote 
of 5 Ayes. 

 
Consider Resolution 18-R-29, designating one representative and one alternate representative to the 
Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) General Assembly for 2019. 

 

Tax Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Tax Rate $0.8436 $0.8386 $0.8386 $0.7980 $0.7880 $0.7880 



MINUTES - 5 -                                 September 20, 2018 

 
Council member Adame moved to approve Resolution 18-R-29, appointing Council member Adam 
Arendell to serve as the representative and Council member Joel Castro as an alternate representative 
to the Houston-Galveston Area Council (H-GAC) General Assembly for 2019.  Seconded by Council 
member Adame; motion to approve carried on a vote of 5 Ayes. 

 
REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER  
Review preliminary list of items for next Council meeting. 
Mr. Junru Roland, City Manager, reviewed the preliminary list for the October 4, 2018 City Council 
meeting.   
 

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 

Hear announcements concerning items of community interest from the Mayor, Council members, and 
City staff, for which no action will be discussed or taken.   
Mrs. Roberts reviewed items of community interest.   
 
Council member Reed encouraged citizens to check their smoke detectors.  He thanked the Alvin 
Police and Fire Department for their quick response to a fire in the upstairs portion of his house. 
 
Council member Castro thanked the Parks Department for obtaining the KaBoom grant for a new 
playground at Newman Park.  
 
Council member Adame encouraged volunteering and donating needed items to the Alvin Animal 
Adoption Center 
 
Council member Starkey extended an invitation to the Alvin Masonic Lodge Open House on 
September 27th, where Jill Craddick Ray of Archangels and Katie Kwirk, will both be honored for 
their humanitarian work in the community, 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor pro-tem Thompson called for an executive session at 7:32 p.m. in accordance to the following: 
 
Texas Government Code Section 551.074 – to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee. 

 

1. City Manager employment contract. 
2. Municipal Court Judge employment contract. 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

 
Take action on Executive Session item if necessary.   
 
Mayor pro tem Thompson reconvened into open session at 8:06 p.m.  

 
Council member Reed moved to approve the Employment Agreement with City Manager Junru 
Roland.  Second my Council member Adame; motion carried with a vote of 5 ayes. 
 
Council member Starkey moved to approve the Employment Agreement with new Municipal Court 
Presiding Judge, Deanie King, effective October 1, 2018.  Second my Council member Adame; 
motion carried with a vote of 5 ayes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Pro-tem adjourned the meeting at 8:07 p.m.  
 



MINUTES - 6 -                                 September 20, 2018 

 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
__________________________  
 Paul A. Horn, Mayor  

ATTEST: ___________________________  
                  Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 



 

City A 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  City Attorney Contact:  Suzanne L. Hanneman, City Attorney  

 
Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 18-Q, discontinuing 817.85 acres of land, more or less, more 

particularly described in Exhibit A (formally described as Brazoria County Municipal 

Utility Districts (MUD) 48 & MUD 49; jurisdictionally annexing 4.51 acres of land, more 

or less, consisting of a five (5) foot wide strip of land, more particularly described in 

Exhibit B; providing for open meetings, and other related matters – first reading. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On July 19, 2018, Walton Texas, petitioned the City for the discontinuance of approximately 817 

acres of land, and the jurisdictional annexation of approximately 4.51 acres of land, consisting of a five (5) foot 

wide strip, the majority of said property being located within Brazoria County Municipal Utility Districts 

(MUDs) Number 48 and Number 49.  These MUDs 48 and 49 will become extra territorial jurisdiction MUDs.  
 

The discontinuance and jurisdictional annexation property are more particularly described by metes and 

bounds in Exhibits A and B, attached to Ordinance 18-Q. 
 

On August 2, 2018, Council approved the commencement of discontinuance and annexation procedures, and 

held two (2) public hearings as required by law on September 6, 2018, and September 13, 2018. 
 

Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 18-Q on first reading.  The second reading of this ordinance will be 

held on October 18, 2018. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:      Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 9/27/2018 SLH 

 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Ord. 18-Q 

• Exhibit A – Discontinuance Property Description 

• Exhibit B – Jurisdictional Annexation Property Description 
 

 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 18-Q, discontinuing 817.85 acres of land, more or less, 

more particularly described in Exhibit A (formally described as Brazoria County 

Municipal Utility Districts (MUD) 48 & MUD 49; jurisdictionally annexing 4.51 

acres of land, more or less, consisting of a five (5) foot wide strip of land, more 

particularly described in Exhibit B; providing for open meetings, and other related 

matters on first reading. 



 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Ord. 18-Q 
 

ORDINANCE 18-Q 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, DISCONTINUING 
817.85 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; JURISDICTIONALLY ANNEXING 4.51 ACRES 
OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, CONSISTING OF A FIVE (5) FOOT WIDE 
STRIP OF LAND, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT B; 
PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, on July 19, 2018, the owner (the “Petitioner”) of certain property located within 
Brazoria County, Texas, petitioned the City of Alvin, Texas (herein the “City”), a home-rule 
municipality, for discontinuance of approximately 817.85 acres (the “Discontinuance Property”), 
from the municipal boundaries of the City, in accordance with Section 43.154 of the Texas Local 
Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Petitioner also simultaneously petitioned the City for jurisdictional annexation 
of approximately 4.51 acres consisting of a five (5) foot wide strip (the “Jurisdictional Annexation 
Property”), more particularly described herein into the City limits, in accordance with Section 
43.052(h)(2) of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the commencement of discontinuance and annexation 
procedures with the respect to the property described in herein, on August 2, 2018, in Resolution 18-R-
24; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Charter authorizes the City Council to unilaterally discontinue and annex 
property within its city limits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate to discontinue the property 
described in Exhibit A and jurisdictionally annex the property described in Exhibit B under the 
authority of the City Charter, subject to satisfying the procedural requirements for the discontinuance 
and annexation of land set forth in the City Charter and state law;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ALVIN, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Discontinuance.  The City hereby discontinues for all purposes the property as 
follows:   
 

A 295.76-acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria County, 
Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 2,075.08-acre tract of land as 



Ord. 18-Q 
 

conveyed in Special Warranty Deed to SUNTEX FULLER CORPORATION, recorded in 
Clerk’s File Number 99-003294 of the Official Public Records of Real Property in Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described by metes and bounds in 
Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
A 522.09-acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria County, 
Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 2,075.08-acre tract of land as 
conveyed in Special Warranty Deed to SUNTEX FULLER CORPORATION, recorded in 
Clerk’s File Number 99-003294 of the Official Public Records of Real Property in Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described by metes and bounds in 
Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
Save and Except: All of a called 4.80 acres described in a document to Century Concrete 
Partners, Inc. as recorded under Brazoria County Clerk’s File Number 2014015716 and all of 
a called 3.34 acres described in a document to Savannah Plantation Development, LP as 
recorded under Brazoria County Clerk’s File Number 2004047755, with a total of 523.53 
acres of land, more or less, and being more particularly shown and described by metes and 
bounds in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
And all of an 80-foot Access Easement being 1.44-acre tract of land as recorded under 
Brazoria County Clerk’s File Number 03-040034. With a total of 522.09 acres of land, more 
or less, and being more particularly shown and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A,” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 

 Section 3.  Jurisdictional Annexation.  The City hereby jurisdictionally annexes the property 
as follows:   

 
 Tract I 
  
 A 2.20 acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria 

County, Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 1,401.60 acre tract 
of land as conveyed in General Warranty Deed to SAVANNAH JOINT VENTURE, as 
recorded in Clerk’s File Number 2009028077of the Official Public Records of Real 
Property in Brazoria County (O.P.R.P.B.C.), Texas, and being more particularly shown 
and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes. 

 
 Tract II 
 
 A 0.43 acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria 

County, Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 1,401.60 acre tract 
of land as conveyed in General Warranty Deed to SAVANNAH JOINT VENTURE, as 
recorded in Clerk’s File Number 2009028077of the Official Public Records of Real 



Ord. 18-Q 
 

Property in Brazoria County (O.P.R.P.B.C.), Texas, and being more particularly shown 
and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes. 

 
 Tract III 
 
 A 1.88 acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria 

County, Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 1,401.60 acre tract 
of land as conveyed in General Warranty Deed to SAVANNAH JOINT VENTURE, as 
recorded in Clerk’s File Number 2009028077of the Official Public Records of Real 
Property in Brazoria County (O.P.R.P.B.C.), Texas, and being more particularly shown 
and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes. 

 
 Section 4.  Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
 Section 5.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED on first reading on the _____ day of October 2018. 

PASSED and APPROVED on second and final reading on the _____ day of October 2018. 

 

 
THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   ATTEST 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary  



Ord. 18-Q 
 

 

  

   
 



Res. 18-R-24 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Discontinuance Property Description 
 

A 295.76-acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria County, 
Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 2,075.08-acre tract of land as 
conveyed in Special Warranty Deed to SUNTEX FULLER CORPORATION, recorded in 
Clerk’s File Number 99-003294 of the Official Public Records of Real Property in Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A,” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
A 522.09-acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria County, 
Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 2,075.08-acre tract of land as 
conveyed in Special Warranty Deed to SUNTEX FULLER CORPORATION, recorded in 
Clerk’s File Number 99-003294 of the Official Public Records of Real Property in Brazoria 
County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A,” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
Save and Except: All of a called 4.80 acres described in a document to Century Concrete 
Partners, Inc. as recorded under Brazoria County Clerk’s File Number 2014015716 and all of 
a called 3.34 acres described in a document to Savannah Plantation Development, LP as 
recorded under Brazoria County Clerk’s File Number 2004047755, with a total of 523.53 
acres of land, more or less, and being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A,” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 
And all of an 80-foot Access Easement being 1.44-acre tract of land as recorded under 
Brazoria County Clerk’s File Number 03-040034. With a total of 522.09 acres of land, more 
or less, and being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 











































Tract I 

Tract II 

Exhibit "B" 

Annexation Property Description 

A 2.20 acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria 
County, Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 1,401.60 acre tract 
ofland as conveyed in General WaITanty Deed to SAVANNAH JOINT VENTURE, as 
recorded in Clerk's File Number 2009028077of the Official Public Records of Real 
Property in Brazoria County (O.P.R.P.B.C.), Texas, and being more particularly shown 
and described in the Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes. 

A 0.43 acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria 
County, Texas; and being out of and a portion of that certain called 1,401.60 acre tract 
ofland as conveyed in General W aITanty Deed to SAVANNAH JOINT VENTURE, as 
recorded in Clerk's File Number 2009028077of the Official Public Records of Real 
Property in Brazoria County ( 0 .P .R.P .B. C. ), Texas, and being more particularly shown 
and described in the Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes. 

Tract III 

A 1.88 acre tract of land out of the Francis Moore League, Abstract 100, Brazoria 
County, Texas; and being out of and a portion of that ce1iain called 1,401.60 acre tract 
ofland as conveyed in General WaITanty Deed to SAVANNAH JOINT VENTURE, as 
recorded in Clerk' s File Number 2009028077of the Official Public Records of Real 
Property in Brazoria County (O.P .R.P .B.C.), Texas, and being more particularly shown 
and described in the Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes. 

Res. 18-R-24 























































 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  Engineering  Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 

Agenda Item:   Consider Ordinance 18-N, amending Chapter 25, Water and Sewers, for the purpose of 
amending the City’s current Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan and 
modifying the Impact Fee Schedule based on the 2018 Land Use Assumptions and Capital 
Improvements Plan and 2018 Impact Fee Study; setting an effective date of November 1, 
2018 for the increase in fees; and setting forth other provisions related thereto. 
 

Type of Item: ☒Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary: Ordinance 18-N amends Chapter 25 by adopting the new impact fee schedule that was 
recommended by the Impact Fee Advisory Committee as a result of the updated Land Use Assumptions and 
Capital Improvements Plan that was drafted by Jimmy Thompson and David Kasper of ARKK Engineers, 
LLC. in accordance with Section 395 of the Texas Local Government Code.  
 
A public hearing was held on September 6, 2018, for Council to receive input from the public regarding the 
2018 Water and Wastewater Land Use Assumptions, Capital Improvements Plan, and Impact Fee Study 
Update. No comments were received from the public at this hearing. 
 
Following the public hearing, Jimmy Thompson (JET Civil Consulting) and David Kasper (ARKK Engineers, 
LLC) presented an overview of the Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Study 2018 Update and answered 
questions from members of City Council.  
 
Essentially the water and wastewater impact fee for new development based on a standard ¾ inch water meter 
increased from $2,500 to $4,350. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 18-N. 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 9/26/2018 SLH 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Ordinance 18-N 

• Water and Wastewater Impact Fee Study 2018 Update - CLICK HERE TO VIEW STUDY 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve Ordinance 18-N, amending Chapter 25, Water and Sewers, for the 
purpose of amending the City’s current Land Use Assumptions and Capital 
Improvements Plan and modifying the Impact Fee Schedule based on the 2018 Land 
Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan and 2018 Impact Fee Study; 
setting an effective date of November 1, 2018 for the increase in fees; and setting 
forth other provisions related thereto. 

http://www.alvin-tx.gov/upload/page/0064/docs/2018%20City%20of%20Alvin%20Impact%20Fee%20Study%20Update_Sealed%20Final.pdf


 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-N 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 25, WATER AND SEWERS, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE CITY’S CURRENT LAND USE 
ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND 
MODIFYING THE IMPACT FEE SCHEDULES BASED ON THE 2018 
LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 
AND IMPACT FEE STUDY UPDATE; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
OF NOVEMBER 1, 2018 FOR THE INCREASE IN FEES; AND SETTING 
FORTH OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, in September 2018, ARKK Engineers, LLC., prepared amendments to the 

Water and Wastewater Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvement Plan in accordance with 
the requirements of Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code and an impact fee study 
update which is on file in the office of the City Secretary and is the City of Alvin Water and 
Wastewater Impact Fee Study 2018 Update (the “2018 Impact Fee Study”); and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council by Resolution 18-R-23 called a public hearing to be held on 

September 6, 2018, for the purpose of discussing the updated study and amending the plans and 
modifying the impact fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City 

to approve the amendments to the land use assumptions and capital improvements plan and 
modifications of an impact fee beginning on November 1, 2018, to bring the actual fees into 
better alignment with the newly adopted 2018 Impact Fee Study; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are found to be true 
and correct. 
 
Section 2.  The impact fees set forth in Schedule 2 D, of Chapter 25, Article VI, Impact Fees for 
Water and Sewer, are hereby adopted as set forth below, incorporated herein, and are hereby 
levied against new development on lands located within the corporate boundaries of the City of 
Alvin commenced after the stated effective date of November 1, 2018. 
 
Section 3.  That Chapter 25, Article VI, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Alvin, Texas is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

ARTICLE VI.  IMPACT FEES FOR WATER AND SEWER 
 
 
Sec. 25-111. - Short title. 

 



Ord 18-N                              Page 2 of 14 
 
 

This article shall be known and cited as the "Alvin Impact Fees Article."  
 
Sec. 25-112.  Purpose and effect. 

 
This article is intended to assure the provision of adequate public facilities to serve new 

development in the city by requiring each development to pay its pro rata share of the costs of 
such improvements necessitated by and attributable to such new development. Impact fees 
established by this article are additional and supplemental to, and not in substitution of any other 
requirements imposed by the city on the development of land or the issuance of building permits 
or certificates of occupancy. Such fee is intended to be consistent with and to further the policies 
of the impact fee capital improvements plan, subdivision regulations and other city policies, 
ordinances and resolutions by which the city seeks to ensure the provision of adequate public 
facilities in conjunction with the development of land.  
 
Sec. 25-113.  Authority. 

 
This article is adopted pursuant to V.T.C.A., Local Government Code, Ch. 395 and pursuant 

to the Alvin City Charter. The provisions of this article shall not be construed to limit the power 
of the city to utilize other methods authorized under state law or pursuant to other city powers to 
accomplish the purposes set forth herein, either in substitution or in conjunction with this article. 
Guidelines may be developed by city council resolution or otherwise to implement and 
administer this article.  
 
Sec. 25-114.  Definitions. 

 
The following definitions shall apply to this article:  
 
Area-related facility means a capital improvement or facility expansion which is designated 

in the impact fee capital improvements plan.  
 
Assessment means the determination of the amount of the maximum impact fee per service 

unit which can be imposed on new development pursuant to this article.  
 
Capital improvement means either a water facility or a sanitary sewer facility with a life 

expectancy of three (3) or more years, to be owned and operated by or on behalf of the city.  
 
City means the City of Alvin, Texas.  
 
Facilities expansion means either a water facility expansion or a sanitary sewer facility 

expansion.  
 
Impact fee means either a fee for water facilities or a fee for sanitary sewer facilities imposed 

on new development by the city, pursuant to this article, in order to fund or recoup the costs of 
capital improvements or facilities expansions necessitated by and attributable to such new 
development.  
 
Impact fees do not include the dedication of rights-of-way or easements for such facilities or the 
construction of such improvements. Impact fees also do not include any participation or 
extension agreements for water and/or sanitary sewer improvements imposed pursuant to front 



Ord 18-N                              Page 3 of 14 
 
 

footage charges for water and/or sanitary sewer lines imposed by the city, or funds deposited in 
escrow for the construction of water or wastewater facilities.  

 
Impact fee capital improvements plan means either a water improvements plan or a sanitary 

sewer improvements plan adopted or revised pursuant to this article. Impact fee capital 
improvements plan may refer either to the plan for a particular service area or to the aggregation 
of capital improvements or facilities expansions and the associated costs programmed for all 
service areas for a particular category of capital improvements or facilities expansions.  

 
Land use assumptions means the projections of population and employment growth and 

associated changes in land uses, densities and intensities adopted by the city, as may be amended 
from time to time, upon which the impact fee capital improvements plans are based.  

 
New development means a project involving the construction, reconstruction, redevelopment, 

conversion, structural alteration, relocation or enlargement of any structure, or any use or 
extension of land, which has the effect of increasing the requirements for capital improvements 
or facility expansions, measured by the number of service units to be generated by such activity 
and which requires either the approval and filing with Brazoria County of a plat pursuant to the 
city's subdivision regulations, the issuance of a building permit or connection to the city's water 
or sanitary sewer system.  

 
Offset means the amount of the reduction of an impact fee designed to fairly reflect the value 

of area-related facilities provided by a developer pursuant to the city's development regulations 
or requirements.  

 
Off-site means outside the boundaries of the property for which a new development is 

proposed. 
 
Plat approval or approval of a plat means the point at which the applicant has complied with 

all conditions of approval, and the plat has been released for filing with Brazoria County.  
 
Recoupment means the imposition of an impact fee to reimburse the city for capital 

improvements which the city has previously oversized to serve new development.  
 
Sanitary sewer facility means an improvement for providing sanitary sewer service, including 

but not limited to land or easements, treatment facilities, lift stations or interceptor mains. 
Sanitary sewer facility excludes sanitary sewer lines or mains which are constructed by 
developers, the costs of which are reimbursed from pro rata charges paid by subsequent users of 
the facilities. Sanitary sewer facilities exclude site-related facilities.  

 
Sanitary sewer facility expansion means the expansion of the capacity of any existing 

sanitary sewer improvement for the purpose of serving new development, but does not include 
the repair, maintenance, modernization or expansion of an existing sanitary sewer facility to 
serve existing development.  

 
Sanitary sewer improvements plan means the adopted plan, as may be amended from time to 

time, which identifies the sanitary sewer facilities or sanitary sewer expansions and their 
associated costs which are necessitated by and which are attributable to new development for a 
period not to exceed ten (10) years and which are to be financed in whole or in part through the 
imposition of sanitary sewer facilities fees, pursuant to this article.  



Ord 18-N                              Page 4 of 14 
 
 

 
Service area means either a water benefit area or sanitary sewer benefit area within the city 

(see section 25-119), within which impact fees for capital improvements or facilities expansions 
will be collected for new development occurring within such area and within which fees so 
collected will be expended for those types of improvements or expansions identified in the type 
of capital improvements plan applicable to the service area.  

 
Service unit means the applicable standard units of measure shown on the conversion table in 

the impact fees capital improvements plan which can be converted either to three-fourths-inch 
(¾) water meter equivalents, as the context indicates, which serves as the standardized measure 
of consumption, use or generation attributable to the new unit of development.  

 
Site-related facility means an improvement or facility which is for the primary use or benefit 

of a new development and/or which is for the primary purpose of safe and adequate provision of 
water or sanitary sewer facilities to serve the new development, and which is not included in the 
impact fees capital improvements plan and for which the developer or property owner is solely 
responsible under subdivision and other applicable regulations.  

 
Water facility means an improvement for providing water service, including but not limited 

to land or easements, water treatment facilities, water supply facilities or water distribution lines. 
Water facility excludes water lines or mains which are constructed by developers, the costs of 
which are reimbursed from pro rata charges paid by subsequent users of the facilities. Water 
facility excludes site-related facilities.  

 
Water facility expansion means the expansion of the capacity of any existing water facility 

for the purpose of serving new development, but does not include the repair, maintenance, 
modernization or expansion of an existing water facility to serve existing development.  

 
Water improvements plan means the adopted plan, as may be amended from time to time, 

which identifies the water facilities or water expansions and their associated costs which are 
necessitated by and which are attributable to new development for a period not to exceed ten (10) 
years and which are to be financed in whole or in part through the imposition of water facilities 
fees pursuant to this article.  
 
Sec. 25-115.  Applicability. 

 
The provisions of this article apply to all new development within the corporate boundaries 

of the city.  
 
Sec. 25-116.  Impact fee as condition of development approval. 

 
No application for new development shall be approved within the city without assessment of 

an impact fee pursuant to this article, and no building permit shall be issued unless the applicant 
has paid the impact fee imposed by and calculated herein.  
 
Sec. 25-117.  Land use assumptions and capital improvements plan. 

 
Land use assumptions and capital improvements plan for Schedule 2, 2A and 2B for the City 

of Alvin used for the development of the impact fees were adopted by the city council at its 
meeting on December 9, 2004. 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level3/PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE.html#PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE_S25-119SEAR


Ord 18-N                              Page 5 of 14 
 
 

 
An updated land use assumptions and capital improvements plan for schedule 2C for the City 

of Alvin, in accordance with the Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395, was acknowledged 
and approved for amendment by the City Council at its meeting on August 15, 2013.  

 
An updated land use assumptions and capital improvements plan for schedule 2D for the City 

of Alvin, in accordance with the Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395, was acknowledged 
and approved for amendment by the City Council at its meeting on August 2, 2018.  

 
 
Sec. 25-118.  Impact fees. 

 
The water and wastewater impact fees for the city applicable from January 20, 2005 to June 

30, 2006 are adopted as presented to the city council at its meeting on January 20, 2005.  
 
The water and wastewater impact fees for the city applicable from July 1, 2006 to June 30, 

2007 are adopted as presented to the city council at its meeting on January 19, 2006.  
 
The water and wastewater impact fees for the city applicable from July 1, 2007 to October 

31, 2013 are adopted as presented to the city council at its meeting on January 19, 2006. 
 
The water and wastewater impact fees for the city applicable from November 1, 2013 to 

October 31, 2018 are adopted as presented to the city council at its meeting on October 3, 2013. 
 
The water and wastewater impact fees for the city applicable starting November 1, 2018, and 

remaining in effect until further action by council, are adopted as presented to the city council at 
its meeting on October 4, 2018.  
 
Sec. 25-119.  Service areas. 

 
Service area for the City of Alvin is established as the city limits of the City of Alvin.  

 
Sec. 25-120.  Impact fees per service unit. 

 
(a) The maximum impact fee per service unit for the service area shall be computed by 

dividing the total costs of capital improvements necessitated by and attributable to new 
development in the service area identified in the impact fee capital improvements plan for that 
category of capital improvements by the total number of service units anticipated within the 
service area, based upon the land use assumptions for that service area. Maximum impact fees 
per service unit for the service area shall be established by category of capital improvements and 
shall be as set forth in schedule 1, attached hereto and made a part of this article by reference.  

 
(b) The impact fee per service unit, which is to be paid by each new development within a 

service area, shall be that established by ordinance by the city council and shall be as set forth in 
schedule 2, attached hereto and made a part of this article by reference. The city council may 
establish different schedule 2 impact fee rates among service areas or land uses for a category of 
capital improvements in order to implement the policies of the city, or to further economic 
development strategies, or to otherwise reasonably promote the health, safety or general welfare 
of the city.  

 



Ord 18-N                              Page 6 of 14 
 
 

(c) Impact fee schedules 1 and 2 may be amended from time to time utilizing the amendment 
procedure set forth in section 25-126. 

 
Sec. 25-121.  Assessment of impact fees. 

 
(a)  The approval of any new development shall include as a condition the assessment of the 

impact fee applicable to such development. 
 
(b) Assessment of the impact fee for any new development shall occur as follows: 

 
(1) For a development which is submitted for approval pursuant to the city's subdivision 

regulations, assessment shall be at the time of final plat approval, and shall be the 
amount of the impact fee per service unit then in effect, as set forth in schedule 2.  

 
(2) For land which is not platted and which is not required to be platted as a condition of 

issuing a building permit or utility connection, assessment shall occur at the time 
application is made for the building permit or utility connection, and shall be the 
amount of the impact fee per service unit then in effect, as set forth in schedule 2.  

 
(c) Following assessment of the impact fee pursuant to subsection (b), the amount of the 

impact fee per service unit for that development cannot be increased, and shall be the amount of 
the schedule 2 rate then in effect, unless the owner proposes to change the approved development 
by the submission of a new application for plat approval, in which case new assessment shall 
occur at the schedule 2 rate then in effect.  

 
(d) Following the lapse or expiration of approval for a plat, a new assessment shall occur at 

the time of final approval of a new plat.  
 
(e) An application for an amending plat made pursuant to V.T.C.A., Local Government 

Code, §212.016, and Subdivision Rules and Regulations, §4.05, is not subject to reassessment 
for an impact fee.  
 
Sec. 25-122.  Computation and collection of impact fees. 

 
(a) The impact fees due for the new development shall be collected prior to or at the time of 

connection to the city's water or sanitary sewer system for water or sanitary sewer facilities 
unless an agreement between the developer and the city has been executed providing for a 
different time of payment.  

 
(b) Following the filing and acceptance of the request for connection to the city's water or 

sanitary sewer system, the city shall compute the impact fees due for the new development in the 
following manner:  

 
(c) The amount of each impact fee due shall be determined by multiplying the number of 

service units generated by the new development by the impact fee due per service unit for the 
service area using schedule 2. The number of service units shall be determined by using the 
equivalency table contained in the impact fee capital improvements plan.  

 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level3/PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE.html#PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE_S25-126UPPLREFE


Ord 18-N                              Page 7 of 14 
 
 

(c) If the building permit for which an impact fee has been paid has expired, and a new 
application is thereafter filed, the impact fees due shall be computed using schedule 2 in effect at 
the time the new application is filed.  

 
(d) Whenever the property owner proposes to increase the number of service units for a 

development, the additional impact fees collected for such new service units shall be determined 
by using schedule 2 in effect at the time the new application is filed in the same manner as 
required for an original building permit.  
 
Sec. 25-123.  Establishment of accounts. 

 
(a) The city chief financial officer shall establish an account for each service area for each 

category of capital facility for which an impact fee is imposed pursuant to this article. Each 
impact fee collected within the service area shall be deposited in such account.  

 
(b) Interest earned on the account into which the impact fees are deposited shall be 

considered funds of the account and shall be used solely for the purposes authorized in section 
25-125 

 
(c) The city chief financial officer shall establish adequate financial and accounting controls 

to ensure that impact fees disbursed from the account are utilized solely for the purposes 
authorized in section 25-125. Disbursement of funds shall be authorized by the city at such times 
as are reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes and intent of this article. Any fee impact 
paid shall be expended within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed ten (10) years from the 
date the fee is deposited into the account. Execution of a design or construction contract by the 
city shall be considered to be expenditure of funds of the account.  

 
(d) The city chief financial officer shall maintain and keep financial records for impact fees, 

which shall show the source and disbursement of all fees collected in or expended from each 
service area. The records of the account into which impact fees are deposited shall be open for 
public inspection and copying during ordinary business hours. The city may assess fees for 
copying services in accordance with the resolution governing public information.  

 
(e) The city chief financial officer shall maintain and keep adequate financial records for said 

accounts which shall show the source and disbursement of all funds placed in or expended by 
such accounts.  
 
Sec. 25-124.  Use of proceeds of impact fee accounts. 
 

The impact fees collected for each service area pursuant to this article may be used to finance 
or to recoup the costs of any capital improvements or facilities expansions identified in the 
applicable impact fee capital improvements plan for the service area, including the construction 
contract price, surveying and engineering fees, land acquisition costs (including land purchases, 
court awards and costs, attorney's fees and expert witness fees), and the fees actually paid or 
contracted to be paid to an independent qualified engineer or financial consultant preparing or 
updating the impact fee capital improvements plan who is not an employee of the political 
subdivision. Impact fees may also be used to pay the principal sum and interest and other finance 
costs on bonds, notes or other obligations issued by or on behalf of the city to finance such 
capital improvements or facilities expansions.  
 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level3/PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE.html#PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE_S25-125RE
http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level3/PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE.html#PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE_S25-125RE
http://library.municode.com/HTML/10357/level3/PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE.html#PTIICOOR_CH25WASE_ARTVIIMFEWASE_S25-125RE


Ord 18-N                              Page 8 of 14 
 
 

Sec. 25-125.  Refunds. 
 
(a) Any impact fee or portion thereof collected pursuant to this article, which has not been 

expended within the service area within ten (10) years from the date of payment, shall be 
refunded, upon application, to the record owner of the property at the time the refund is paid; or 
if the impact fee was paid by another governmental entity, to such governmental entity, together 
with interest calculated from the date of collection to the date of refund at the statutory rate as set 
forth in Chapter 395, Texas Local Government Code or any successor statute.  

 
(b) An impact fee collected pursuant to this article shall be considered expended if the total 

expenditures for capital improvements or facilities expansions authorized in this section within 
the service area within ten (10) years following the date of payment exceeds the total fees 
collected for such improvements or expansions during such period. An impact fee shall be 
considered expended on a first-in, first-out basis.  

 
(c) If a refund is due pursuant to subsections (a) and (b), the city shall prorate the same by 

dividing the difference between the amount of expenditures and the amount of the fees collected 
by the total number of service units assumed within the service area for the period to determine 
the refund due per service unit. The refund to the record owner shall be calculated by multiplying 
the refund due per service unit by the number of service units for the development for which the 
fee was paid, and interest due shall be calculated upon that amount.  

 
(d) Upon completion of all the capital improvements or facilities expansions identified in the 

impact fee capital improvements plan for the service area, the city shall recalculate the maximum 
impact fee per service unit using the actual costs for the improvements or expansions. If the 
maximum impact fee per service unit based on actual cost is less than the impact fee per service 
unit paid, the city shall refund the difference, if such difference exceeds the impact fee paid by 
more than ten (10) percent. The refund to the record owner shall be calculated by multiplying 
such difference by the number of service units for the development for which the fee was paid, 
and interest due shall be calculated upon that amount.  

 
(e) If the building permit for a new development for which an impact fee has been paid has 

expired, and a modified or new application has not been filed within six (6) months of such 
expiration, the city shall, upon written application, refund the amount of the impact fee to the 
applicant.  
 
Sec. 25-126.  Updates to plan and revision of fees. 

 
(a) The city shall update its land use and impact fees capital improvements plans, and shall 

recalculate its impact fees in accordance with the procedures set out in V.T.C.A., Local 
Government Code, Ch. 395, or in any successor statute.  

 
(b) The city may amend by resolution the equivalency table in the impact fee capital 

improvements plan, which establishes the ratio of service units to various types of land uses, at 
any time prior to the update provided for in subsection (a); provided, however, that the number 
of service units associated with a particular land use shall not be increased, unless such change is 
made in conjunction with amendments to the impact fee capital improvements plan at the time of 
the update.  
 
  



Ord 18-N                              Page 9 of 14 
 
 

Sec. 25-127.  Agreement for capital improvements. 
 
An owner of a new development may construct or finance a capital improvement or facility 

expansion designated in the impact fee capital improvements plan, if required or authorized by 
the city, by entering into an agreement with the city prior to the issuance of any building permit 
for the development. The agreement shall be on a form approved by the city and shall identify 
the estimated cost of the improvement or expansion, the schedule for initiation and completion of 
the improvement or expansion, a requirement that the improvement be designed and completed 
to city standards and such other terms and conditions as deemed necessary by the city.  
 
Sec. 25-128.  Relief procedures. 

 
(a) Any person who has paid an impact fee, or an owner of land upon which an impact fee 

has been paid, may petition the city council to determine whether any duty required by this 
article has not been performed within the time so prescribed. The petition shall be in writing and 
shall state the nature of the unperformed duty and request that the act be performed within sixty 
(60) days of the request. If the city council determines that the duty is required pursuant to the 
article and is late in being performed, it shall cause the duty to commence with sixty (60) days of 
the date of the request and to continue until completion.  

 
(b) Upon written request by the property owner or applicant, the city council may reduce or 

waive the amount of the impact fees imposed by this article, following a public hearing, only 
upon finding that the imposition of such fees, together with any dedication or construction of 
capital improvements required as a condition of development approval, is disproportionate to the 
nature and extent of the new development proposed.  

 
(1) The appellant must file a notice of appeal with the city clerk within thirty (30) days 

following the administrative decision of the impact fee due. If the notice of appeal is 
accompanied by a bond or other sufficient surety satisfactory to the city attorney in an 
amount equal to the original determination of the impact fee due, the development 
application may be processed while the appeal is pending. The appeal under this 
provision may be combined with an appeal of a construction requirement imposed by 
the city's subdivision regulations.  

 
(2) The notice of appeal shall allege that the requirement(s) is not roughly proportional to 

the nature and extent of the development being proposed. Thereafter, the appellant 
shall provide a study, including the following information, to support his claim:  
 
a. Total number of service units attributable to the development, utilizing average 

trip length and equivalency tables provided by the city. Service units also shall be 
estimated for each proposed or planned use in the original or revised preliminary 
plat of which the development is a part.  

 
b. Appraised value of the land required to be dedicated, if any, for non-site related 

facilities. 
 
c. Value of construction, if any, for non-site related facilities, less any proposed 

participation or contribution by the city. 
 



Ord 18-N                              Page 10 of 14 
 
 

d. Total estimated impact fees due for the development, utilizing Schedule 2 of the 
impact fees article then in effect, together with impact fees due for each proposed 
or planned use in the original or revised preliminary plat of which the 
development is a part. Estimated impact fees shall be discounted by any available 
offsets.  

 
(3) The city council shall hear the appeal and determine whether requirements imposed 

by the subdivision regulations, or under the impact fees article, or the combination of 
requirements, is roughly proportional to the nature and extent of the development 
proposed, in reaching such determination, the council shall take into account the 
information in the study supplied by the appellant, the total costs to the city for all 
development associated with the original or revised preliminary plat of which the 
proposed development is a part, and the extent to which requirements imposed by the 
city benefit the proposed development.  

 
(4) Following such determination, the city council shall affirm or modify the      

requirement(s) imposed. The council may take any of the following actions if it finds 
that the requirement(s) is not roughly proportional to the development being 
proposed.  
 
a. Waive in whole or in part any construction requirement of a non-sited related 

facility; or 
 
b. Direct that the city participate in the costs of acquiring or constructing such 

facility pursuant to standard participation policies.  
 
(c) If the city council grants a waiver to the amount of the impact fee due for a new 

development other than pursuant to subsection (b), it shall cause to be appropriated from other 
city funds the amount of the reduction in the impact fee to the account for the service area in 
which the property is located.  

 
 

  



Ord 18-N                              Page 11 of 14 
 
 

SCHEDULE 2 
CITY OF ALVIN IMPACT FEES 

ADOPTED SCHEDULE OF IMPACT FEES 
 

EFFECTIVE DATES: JANUARY 20, 2005 TO JUNE 30, 2006  
 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE 2A 
CITY OF ALVIN IMPACT FEES 

ADOPTED SCHEDULE OF IMPACT FEES 
 

EFFECTIVE DATES: JULY 1, 2006 TO JUNE 30, 2007  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Meter Size Recommended Recommended Total
(inches) Water Wastewater Recommended

Impact Fee Impact Fee Imact Fees

5/8 or 3/4 $750 $500 $1,250 

1 $1,253 $835 $2,088 

1 ½ $2,498 $1,665 $4,163 

2 $3,998 $2,665 $6,663 

3 $7,500 $5,000 $12,500 

4 $12,503 $8,335 $20,838 

6 $24,998 $16,665 $41,663 

8 $39,998 $26,665 $66,663 

10 $57,503 $38,335 $95,838 

Meter Size Recommended Recommended Total 
(inches) Water Wastewater Recommended 

Impact Fee Impact Fee Impact Fees 

5/8 or 3/4 $1,080  $720  $1,800  

1 $1,805  $1,202  $3,007  

1 ½ $3,597  $2,398  $5,995  

2 $5,757  $3,838  $9,595  

3 $10,800  $7,200  $18,000  

4 $18,005  $12,002  $30,007  

6 $35,997  $23,998  $59,995  

8 $57,597  $38,398  $95,995  

10 $84,806  $55,202  $138,007  



Ord 18-N                              Page 12 of 14 
 
 

SCHEDULE 2B 
CITY OF ALVIN IMPACT FEES 

ADOPTED SCHEDULE OF IMPACT FEES 
 

EFFECTIVE DATES: JULY 1, 2007 TO OCTOBER 31, 2013 
 

 

 

SCHEDULE 2C 
CITY OF ALVIN IMPACT FEES 

ADOPTED SCHEDULE OF IMPACT FEES 
 

EFFECTIVE DATES: NOVEMBER 1, 2013 TO OCTOBER 31, 2018 
 

Meter Size 
(inches) 

Recommended 
Water Impact 

Fee 

Recommended 
Wastewater 
Impact Fee 

Total 
Recommended 

Impact Fees 

5/8 or 3/4 $1,000 $1,500 $2,500 

1 $1,670 $2,505 $4,175 

1 1/2 $3,330 $4,995 $8,325 

2 $5,330 $7,995 $13,325 

3 $10,000 $15,000 $25,000 

4 $16,670 $25,005 $41,675 

6 $33,330 $49,995 $83,325 

8 $53,330 $79,995 $133,325 

10 $76,670 $115,005 $191,675 

 
 
 

Meter Size Recommended Recommended Total 
(inches) Water Wastewater Recommended 

Impact Fee Impact Fee Impact Fees 

5/8 or 3/4 $1,440  $960  $2,400  

1 $2,406  $1,603  $4,009  

1 ½ $4,696  $3,197  $7,993  

2 $7,676  $5,117  $12,793 

3 $14,400  $9,600  $24,000  

4 $24,006  $16,003  $40,009  

6 $47,996  $31,997  $79,993  

8 $76,796  $51,197  $127,993  

10 $110,405  $73,602  $184,007  



Ord 18-N                              Page 13 of 14 
 
 

 

SCHEDULE 2D 
CITY OF ALVIN IMPACT FEES 

ADOPTED SCHEDULE OF IMPACT FEES 
 

EFFECTIVE DATES: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 UNTIL FURTHER AMENDMENT 
 

Meter Size 
(inches) 

Recommended 
Water Impact 

Fee 

Recommended 
Wastewater 
Impact Fee 

Total 
Recommended 

Impact Fees 

5/8 or 3/4 $1,700 $2,650 $4,350 

1 $2,839 $4,425 $7,264 

1 1/2 $5,661 $8,824 $14,485 

2 $9,061 $14,124 $23,185 

3 $18,139 $28,275 $46,414 

4 $28,339 $44,175 $72,514 

6 $56,661 $88,324 $144,985 

8 $90,661 $141,324 $231,985 

10 $130,339 $203,175 $333,514 

12 $300,339 $468,175 $768,514 

 

Secs. 25-129 - 25-139. - Reserved. 

 
Section 4. Repealing Clause. All provisions of the ordinances of the City of Alvin in conflict 
with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other provisions of the 
ordinances of the City of Alvin, not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. Severability. If any section, article, phrase, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or 
word shall be declared invalid for any reason whatsoever, such decision shall not affect the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end, 
the provisions of this Ordinance are declared severable. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 52 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, and the City of Alvin Charter.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first and final reading on the ______ day of October 2018. 
 



Ord 18-N                              Page 14 of 14 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:    ATTEST:     
  

By: ________________________________  By: _____________________________  
Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 

  
 

 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  City Attorney Contact:  Suzanne Hanneman, City Attorney  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider Resolution 18-R-35, amending the conditions to consent regarding Fort Bend 

County Municipal Utility District No. 189; and other matters related thereto.   
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☒Resolution  ☐Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   In 2007, BGM Land Investments, Ltd., petitioned the City for consent to the creation of Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189 to serve 238.597 acres of land in Fort Bend County, Texas, 
all of which is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Alvin.  On March 15, 2007, the 
City Council consented to the creation of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189 in Resolution 
07-R-08.  Attached to the Resolution 07-R-08 as Exhibit B, were terms and conditions specific to the creation 
of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189, and those conditions failed to include recreational 
facilities and road facilities, as was recited in Resolution 07-R-08. 

Therefore, staff is recommending approving the amended consent conditions, attached as Exhibit B, to include 
recreational facilities and road facilities to make it consistent with the recitals in Resolution 07-R-08. 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount: 
 

1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 10/1/2018 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Res 18-R-35 
• Exhibit B 

 
 
Recommendation:   Move to approve Resolution 18-R-35, amending the conditions to consent regarding 

Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189; and other matters related 
thereto.   

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Res. 18-R-35  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 18-R-35 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ALVIN, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CONDITIONS TO 
CONSENT REGARDING FORT BEND COUNTY 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 189; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, in 2007, BGM Land Investments, Ltd., petitioned the City for consent to 

the creation of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189 to serve 238.597 acres of 
land in Fort Bend County, Texas, all of which is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of 
the City of Alvin, Texas (the “City”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 15, 2007, the City Council consented to the creation of Fort Bend 

County Municipal Utility District No. 189 in Resolution 07-R-08; and 
 

WHEREAS, attached to Resolution 07-R-08 as Exhibit B, were terms and conditions 
specific to the creation of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 189; and 

 
WHEREAS, Exhibit B failed to include recreational facilities and road facilities, as was 

recited in Resolution 07-R-08; and 
 
WHEREAS, amending Exhibit B to include recreational facilities and road facilities 

makes it consistent with the recitals in Resolution 07-R-08;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS:  
 
Section 1. That all of the above recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as findings of fact by the City Council of Alvin, Texas. 
 
Section 2.  That the City Council of Alvin, Texas, hereby specifically imposes the amended 
terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 
purposes, to accurately reflect the recitals in Resolution 07-R-08. 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings Act.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the  ___________ day of October 2018.  

 



Res. 18-R-35  Page 2 of 2 

 
CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________  By: ________________________________                 
          Paul A. Horn, Mayor     Dixie Roberts, City Secretary 
 



Exhibit B 
 

Amended Conditions to Consent 
 

(a) The District may issue bonds, including refunding bonds, for any 
purposes authorized by law, including but not limited to, purchasing, refinancing, 
designing and constructing, or otherwise acquiring waterworks systems, sanitary sewer 
systems, storm sewer systems, and drainage facilities, recreational facilities, road 
facilities or parts of such systems or facilities, and to make any and all necessary 
purchases, constructions, improvements, extensions, additions, and repairs thereto, and 
to purchase or acquire all necessary land, right-of-way, easements, sites, equipment, 
buildings, plants, structures, and facilities therefor, and to operate and maintain same, 
and to sell water, sanitary sewer, and other services within or without the boundaries of 
the District.  Such bonds must provide that the District reserves the right to redeem said 
bonds on any date subsequent to the 15th anniversary of the date of issuance (or any 
earlier date at the discretion of the District) without premium, and none of such bonds, 
other than refunding bonds, will be sold for less than 95 percent of par; provided that 
the net effective interest rate on bonds so sold, taking into account any discount or 
premium as well as the interest rate borne by such bonds, will not exceed two percent  
above the highest average interest rate reported by the Daily Bond Buyer in its weekly 
“20 Bond Index” during the one-month period next preceding the date of the sale of 
such bonds. The resolution authorizing the issuance of the District’s bonds will contain 
a provision that the pledge of any revenues from the operation of the District’s water 
and sewer and/or drainage system to the payment of the District’s bonds will terminate 
when and if the City annexes the District, takes over the assets of the District, and 
assumes all of the obligations of the District.  
 

(b) Before the commencement of any construction within the District, its 
directors, officers, or developers and landowners will submit to the City, or to its 
designated representative, all plans and specifications for the construction of water, 
sanitary sewer, drainage and road facilities to serve the District and obtain the approval 
of such plans and specifications therefrom.  All water wells, water meters, flushing 
valves, valves, pipes, and appurtenances thereto, installed or used within the District, 
will conform to the specifications of the City.  All water service lines and sewer service 
lines, lift stations, roads and appurtenances thereto, installed or used within the District 
will comply with the City’s standard plans and specifications as amended from time to 
time.  Prior to the construction of such facilities within or by the District, the District or 
its engineer will give written notice by registered or certified mail to the City, stating 
the date that such construction will be commenced.  The construction of the District’s 
water, sanitary sewer, drainage and road facilities will be in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications and with applicable standards and specifications of 
the City; and during the progress of the construction and installation of such facilities, 
the City may make periodic on-the-ground inspections. 



-2- 
Exhibit B – Amended Consent Conditions 

 
(c) In the event that the District operates a sewage treatment plant, the 

District will agree to employ a sewage plant operator holding an applicable, valid 
certificate of competency issued under the direction of the Texas Department of Health.  
The District will agree to make periodic analyses of its discharge pursuant to the rules 
of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) and further, to send 
copies of all such effluent data to the City, as well as to the TCEQ The District will agree 
that representatives of the City may supervise the continued operations of the sewage 
treatment facility by making periodic inspections thereof. 

 
(d) The District, its board of directors, officers, developers, and/or 

landowners will not permit the construction, or commit to any development within, the 
District that will result in a wastewater flow to the serving treatment facility which 
exceeds that facility’s legally permitted average daily flow limitations or the District’s 
allocated capacity therein. 
 

(e) Prior to the sale of any lot or parcel of land, the owner or the developer of 
the land included within the limits of the District will obtain the approval of the 
appropriate officials of the City of a plat which will be duly recorded in the Official 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and otherwise comply with the rules and 
regulations of the City. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  Public Services Contact:  Brian Smith, Director of Public Services  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an award of bid to Commercial Chemical Products for the purchase of Sodium 

Bisulfite for one (1) year with the option to extend for one year at the same terms and 
conditions, for an estimated total of $25,000 per year. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary: Sodium Bisulfite is used at the Wastewater Treatment Plant after chlorine disinfection prior to 
discharging the effluent to receiving water in an effort to process and treat the wastewater.    
 
On June 12, 2018, bids were opened and Commercial Chemical Products was the lowest qualified bidder for 
Sodium Bisulfite at $1.49 per gallon. 
 
The amount of wastewater being treated is contingent upon the amount of wastewater sent to the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant for treatment from the community.  The projected annual cost for Sodium Bisulfite in FY19 at 
$1.49 per gallon is $25,000. However, $35,000 was budgeted for the FY19 in the event of an increase in 
wastewater treatment were to occur.  Last year, $20,385 was spent on Sodium Bisulfite at $1.60 per gallon. 
 
Upon Council approval, an award letter will be sent to vendor and city departments.  
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:     211-6003-00-2425 Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☐    Date Completed: 9/26/2018 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Bid Tabulation 
 

 
Recommendation:   Move to award bid to Commercial Chemical Products to purchase Sodium Bisulfite 

for one (1) year with the option to extend for one year at the same terms and 
conditions, for an estimated total of $25,000 per year. 

 
 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



CITY OF ALVIN BID TABULATION 
SODIUM BISULFITE 

B-18-07 
 

DATE OF BID OPENING BIDDER’S NAME Commercial 
Chemical Products 

Napco Chemical 
Solutions 

Univar USA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 12, 2018  1707 Townhurst 2830 Spring Cypress 8201 S. 212th St. 

2:15PM  Houston, Texas 
77043 

Spring, Texas 77388 Kent, WA 98032 

 QUOTED BY Alan Falik Jay Judge Stacy Ziegler 

 CONTACT Alan Falik Jay Judge Stacy Ziegler 

 TELEPHONE 713-463-1929 281-651-6800 253-872-5000 

 FAX 832-436-4708 281-651-6868 253-872-5041 

     

BID PRICE  $1.49 / gallon $1.59/ gallon $2.00/gallon 

DELIVERY TIME  2 days 3 days 5-7 days 

 



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  Public Services Contact:  Brian Smith, Director of Public Services  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement with TDEC Inc. as the 

primary contractor, and an On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement with DM 
Electrical and Construction LLC, as the secondary contractor, to provide on-call 
professional electrical services for a term of two (2) years; and authorize the City Manager 
to sign the agreements upon legal review. 
 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   A Request for Proposals (RFP) for on-call professional electrical services was advertised on August 
12, 2018 and August 19, 2018.  Responses to the RFP were received from three (3) electrical companies and 
have been reviewed by staff. Both TDEC and DM Electrical are qualified to perform electrical services for the 
City.  Staff would like to use TDEC, Inc. as the primary contractor, and DM Electrical and Construction LLC, 
as the secondary contractor, for on-call professional electrical services for the City. 
 
The Electrical Services Agreements being considered will allow said companies to provide electrical services to 
Public Services Facilities (lift stations, WWTP, Water Wells), and to any other electrical needs of the City.  
Approval of this agreement will ensure that electrical services can be provided to City facilities. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☐ N/A ☒ Budgeted Item: Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☒ 

Funding Account:  Amount:  1295 Form Required? Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 9/27/2018 SLH 
 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Agreements 
• TDEC Inc. & DM Electrical and Construction LLC SOQ 
 

Recommendation:   Move to approve an On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement with TDEC 
Inc. as the primary contractor, and an On-Call Professional Electrical Services 
Agreement with DM Electrical and Construction LLC, as the secondary contractor 
for on-call professional electrical services for two (2) years; and authorize the City 
Manager sign the agreements upon legal review. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☐  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL ELECTRICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR THE CITY OF ALVIN 

 
 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
§           KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  §                              
 

This Agreement for ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL ELECTRICAL SERVICES (the 
“Electrical Services Agreement”) is made on this the           day of October 2018, by and between 
the CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, a home-rule city of the State of Texas (the “City”), and TDEC, 
Inc., as the primary electrician Contractor (the “Contractor”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the on August 12, 2018 and August 18, 2018, the City advertised for 
Requests for Proposals from electricians to provide on-call electrical services to the City of 
Alvin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Requests for Proposals were received on or about August 23, 2018, and 
were extensively evaluated by the City staff; and 
 
 WHEREAS, through such evaluation by City staff it was determined that TDEC, Inc. 
presented the best rating based on the points of the evaluation criteria.  Therefore, TDEC, Inc. 
will be the City’s primary on-call electrician, with DM Electrical and Construction LLC, as the 
secondary; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about October 4, 2018, the City Council awarded an On-Call 
Professional Electrical Services Agreement to TDEC, Inc. as the primary on-call electrician for 
the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement defines the rights and obligations of the parties; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises 
contained herein the parties hereby agree as follows:    
 

I. 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1.1 The scope of services will be determined by individual project needs.  The scope will be 
on going and as needed.   

 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (TDEC, Inc.) - 2  

 

a. Contractor will be available as-needed on an on-call basis, prepared to perform 
routine and urgent electrical maintenance and repairs at the rates stated in the 
attached Exhibit A. 
 

b. Contractor agrees to perform the services and comply with the provisions 
specified in the Request for Proposals, and the Request and Contractor’s 
Response to the Request for Proposals (attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated by reference), comprise a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth 
herein and such provisions form a part of this Agreement.   

 
II. 

DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR 

2.1 The Contractor shall provide all supervision, labor, materials, supplies, equipment, tools, 
transportation, permits and insurance necessary to perform the on-call electrical services 
at the various City facilities. 
 

2.2 Contractor warrants that is shall perform all work in a good and workmanlike manner, 
meeting the standards of quality prevailing in Brazoria County, Texas, for work of this 
kind. 
 

2.3 Contractor shall perform all work using trained and skilled persons having substantial 
experience performing the work required under this Agreement. 
 

III. 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

3.1 Subject to the provisions of this On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement, the 
term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2018 and shall end on September 
30, 2019, unless terminated earlier in accordance within the provisions hereof.   
 

3.2 This Agreement may be renewed for two (2) successive one-year terms on the same 
terms and conditions, for a total of three (3) consecutive years, at the and each renewal 
term shall be attached to the Agreement as an Addendum.  Each renewal shall be at the 
sole discretion of the City and must be evidenced in writing and approved by the 
appropriate authorities of each party.  
 

3.3 The City of Alvin may cancel this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written 
notice prior to date of termination. 
 

3.4 Without limitation to such rights or remedies as the City shall otherwise have by law, the 
City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend work for any reason, 
upon ten (10) days’ written notice to the Contractor.  
 

3.5 The Contractor agrees to cease all work under this Agreement upon receipt of said 
written notice. 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (TDEC, Inc.) - 3  

 

 
 

IV. 
COMPENSATION  

 
4.1 Contractor shall perform the on-call electrical services required by this Agreement on a 

per request – per services performed basis.    
 

4.2 Payment shall be made by the City for services rendered and upon submission of an 
invoice and the City’s approval of the work performed.   
 

4.3 City agrees to pay Contractor a fee pursuant to the rates reflected in Contractor’s 
Response to the Request for Proposals, attached here to as Exhibit A, and incorporated by 
reference. 
 

4.4 The City shall make payment within thirty (30) days upon receipt of Contractor’s invoice, 
pursuant to Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code (the Texas Prompt Payment 
Act).  
  

V.  
INSURANCE 

 
5.1 Minimum insurance requirements for Contractor awarded this Agreement shall be as 

follows: 
 
  Coverage                  Limits of Liability 
 
  Worker’s Compensation shall conform to statutory requirements. 
 
  Comprehensive General Liability 
 

 Bodily Injury Liability    $1,000,000       
  Property Damage Liability                $1,000,000 
  Aggregate     $2,000,000 
 

5.2 The Comprehensive General Liability Policy must provide complete automatic 
contractual liability coverage, particularly liability assumed under written lease, easement 
or side-tract agreements. 

 
  Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
 

 Bodily Injury Liability    $1,000,000  
 Property Damage Liability    $1,000,000 

 
 Excess Liability Insurance Comprehensive General Liability, Comprehensive 

Automobile Liability and coverages afforded by the policies described above, 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (TDEC, Inc.) - 4  

 

with minimum limits of $2,000,000.00 excess of the specified limits. 
 
5.3 The City must be named as one of the insured in each of the above coverages, except 

Worker’s Compensation. 
 

5.4 Insurance policies must not show cancellation date.  They must be in effect until 
canceled.  The usual ten-day cancellation notice clause must be inserted in all coverages 
where appropriate and customary. 
 

5.5 All coverages must be with companies acceptable to the City.  The Contractor will 
furnish the City with a copy of each insurance policy required in connection with this 
work. 

 
VI. 

RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
6.1 RELEASE:  CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL RELEASE THE CITY, 

ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES 
(COLLECTIVELY THE “CITY”) FROM ALL LIABILITY FOR INJURY, 
DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY SUSTAINED IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT, EVEN IF THE INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS IS 
CAUSED BY THE CITY’S SOLE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE AND/OR 
THE CITY’S STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY 
LIABILITY. 

 
6.2 INDEMNIFICATION:  CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL DEFEND, 

INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, 
AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY THE “CITY”) 
HARMLESS FOR ALL CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITIES, FINES 
AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES, COURT COSTS, AND ALL OTHER DEFENSE COSTS AND INTEREST) 
FOR INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY 
SUSTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE 
CAUSED BY: 

 
a. CONTRACTOR’S AND/OR ITS AGENTS’, EMPLOYEES’, 

OFFICERS’, DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTORS’, OR 
SUBCONTRACTORS’ ACTUAL OR ALLEGED NEGLIGENCE 
OR INTENTIONAL ACTS OR OMISSIONS; 
 

b. THE CITY’S AND CONTRACTOR’S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED 
CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS 
IMMUNE FROM LIABILITY OR NOT; AND 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (TDEC, Inc.) - 5  

 

 
c. THE CITY’S AND CONTRACTOR’S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED 

STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY 
LIABILITY, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS IMMUNE FROM 
LIABILITY OR NOT. 

 
6.3 CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY 

HARMLESS DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT AND FOR FOUR 
YEARS AFTER THE AGREEMENT TERMINATES.  CONTRACTOR’S 
INDEMNIFICATION IS LIMITED TO $500,000 PER OCCURRENCE.  
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT INDEMNIFY THE CITY FOR THE CITY’S SOLE 
NEGLIGENCE. 

 
VII. 

NOTICE 

All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
received when actually received or if earlier, on the third (3rd) day following deposit in the 
United States Postal Services post office or receptacle with proper postage affixed (certified 
mail, return receipt requested) addressed to the other party at the address set forth below or at 
such other addresses as the receiving party may have therefore prescribed by the notice to the 
sending party: 

 
Public Services Department   TDEC, Inc. 
City of Alvin     911 South Gordon Street 
1100 West Highway 6    Alvin, Texas 77511 
Alvin, Texas 77511    Phone No.: (281) 331-3172 

 Phone No: (281) 388-4325    
 

VIII. 
GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas and, in the event of 
litigation, venue will be in Brazoria County, Texas. 
 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (TDEC, Inc.) - 6  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this On-Call 
Professional Electrician Services Agreement in multiple copies, each of which shall be an 
original, as of this _____day of October 2018. 
 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS    TDEC, INC. 
                              
 
 
 

By: __________________________   By: _________________________ 
 Junru Roland                 Terry Droege 
 City Manager                 President 
 
 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 



Received 8/22/18 - 4:00 p.m.
Opened 8/23/18 - 2:15 p.m.
City Secretary's Office











ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL ELECTRICAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
FOR THE CITY OF ALVIN 

 
 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
§           KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  §                              
 

This Agreement for ON-CALL PROFESSIONAL ELECTRICAL SERVICES (the 
“Electrical Services Agreement”) is made on this the           day of October 2018, by and between 
the CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS, a home-rule city of the State of Texas (the “City”), and DM 
Electrical and Construction LLC, as the secondary electrician Contractor (the “Contractor”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the on August 12, 2018 and August 18, 2018, the City advertised for 
Requests for Proposals from electricians to provide on-call electrical services to the City of 
Alvin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Requests for Proposals were received on or about August 23, 2018, and 
were extensively evaluated by the City staff; and 
 
 WHEREAS, through such evaluation by City staff it was determined that TDEC, Inc. 
presented the best rating based on the points of the evaluation criteria.  Therefore, TDEC, Inc. 
will be the City’s primary on-call electrician, with DM Electrical and Construction LLC, as the 
secondary; and 
 

WHEREAS, on or about October 4, 2018, the City Council awarded an On-Call 
Professional Electrical Services Agreement to DM Electrical and Construction LLC, Inc. as the 
secondary contractor for on-call professional electrical services for the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement defines the rights and obligations of the parties; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises 
contained herein the parties hereby agree as follows:    
 

I. 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1.1 The scope of services will be determined by individual project needs.  The scope will be 
on going and as needed.   

 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (DME) - 2  

 

a. Contractor will be available as-needed on an on-call basis, prepared to perform 
routine and urgent electrical maintenance and repairs at the rates stated in the 
attached Exhibit A. 
 

b. Contractor agrees to perform the services and comply with the provisions 
specified in the Request for Proposals, and the Request and Contractor’s 
Response to the Request for Proposals (attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated by reference), comprise a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth 
herein and such provisions form a part of this Agreement.   

 
II. 

DUTIES OF CONTRACTOR 

2.1 The Contractor shall provide all supervision, labor, materials, supplies, equipment, tools, 
transportation, permits and insurance necessary to perform the on-call electrical services 
at the various City facilities. 
 

2.2 Contractor warrants that is shall perform all work in a good and workmanlike manner, 
meeting the standards of quality prevailing in Brazoria County, Texas, for work of this 
kind. 
 

2.3 Contractor shall perform all work using trained and skilled persons having substantial 
experience performing the work required under this Agreement. 
 

III. 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

3.1 Subject to the provisions of this On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement, the 
term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2018 and shall end on September 
30, 2019, unless terminated earlier in accordance within the provisions hereof.   
 

3.2 This Agreement may be renewed for two (2) successive one-year terms on the same 
terms and conditions, for a total of three (3) consecutive years, at the and each renewal 
term shall be attached to the Agreement as an Addendum.  Each renewal shall be at the 
sole discretion of the City and must be evidenced in writing and approved by the 
appropriate authorities of each party.  
 

3.3 The City of Alvin may cancel this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written 
notice prior to date of termination. 
 

3.4 Without limitation to such rights or remedies as the City shall otherwise have by law, the 
City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend work for any reason, 
upon ten (10) days’ written notice to the Contractor.  
 

3.5 The Contractor agrees to cease all work under this Agreement upon receipt of said 
written notice. 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (DME) - 3  

 

 
 

IV. 
COMPENSATION  

 
4.1 Contractor shall perform the on-call electrical services required by this Agreement on a 

per request – per services performed basis.    
 

4.2 Payment shall be made by the City for services rendered and upon submission of an 
invoice and the City’s approval of the work performed.   
 

4.3 City agrees to pay Contractor a fee pursuant to the rates reflected in Contractor’s 
Response to the Request for Proposals, attached here to as Exhibit A, and incorporated by 
reference. 
 

4.4 The City shall make payment within thirty (30) days upon receipt of Contractor’s invoice, 
pursuant to Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code (the Texas Prompt Payment 
Act).  
  

V.  
INSURANCE 

 
5.1 Minimum insurance requirements for Contractor awarded this Agreement shall be as 

follows: 
 
  Coverage                  Limits of Liability 
 
  Worker’s Compensation shall conform to statutory requirements. 
 
  Comprehensive General Liability 
 

 Bodily Injury Liability    $1,000,000       
  Property Damage Liability                $1,000,000 
  Aggregate     $2,000,000 
 

5.2 The Comprehensive General Liability Policy must provide complete automatic 
contractual liability coverage, particularly liability assumed under written lease, easement 
or side-tract agreements. 

 
  Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
 

 Bodily Injury Liability    $1,000,000  
 Property Damage Liability    $1,000,000 

 
 Excess Liability Insurance Comprehensive General Liability, Comprehensive 

Automobile Liability and coverages afforded by the policies described above, 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (DME) - 4  

 

with minimum limits of $2,000,000.00 excess of the specified limits. 
 
5.3 The City must be named as one of the insured in each of the above coverages, except 

Worker’s Compensation. 
 

5.4 Insurance policies must not show cancellation date.  They must be in effect until 
canceled.  The usual ten-day cancellation notice clause must be inserted in all coverages 
where appropriate and customary. 
 

5.5 All coverages must be with companies acceptable to the City.  The Contractor will 
furnish the City with a copy of each insurance policy required in connection with this 
work. 

 
VI. 

RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
6.1 RELEASE:  CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL RELEASE THE CITY, 

ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES 
(COLLECTIVELY THE “CITY”) FROM ALL LIABILITY FOR INJURY, 
DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY SUSTAINED IN 
CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT, EVEN IF THE INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS IS 
CAUSED BY THE CITY’S SOLE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE AND/OR 
THE CITY’S STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY 
LIABILITY. 

 
6.2 INDEMNIFICATION:  CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL DEFEND, 

INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, 
AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES (COLLECTIVELY THE “CITY”) 
HARMLESS FOR ALL CLAIMS, CAUSES OF ACTION, LIABILITIES, FINES 
AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ATTORNEYS’ 
FEES, COURT COSTS, AND ALL OTHER DEFENSE COSTS AND INTEREST) 
FOR INJURY, DEATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY 
SUSTAINED IN CONNECTION WITH OR INCIDENTAL TO PERFORMANCE 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE 
CAUSED BY: 

 
a. CONTRACTOR’S AND/OR ITS AGENTS’, EMPLOYEES’, 

OFFICERS’, DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTORS’, OR 
SUBCONTRACTORS’ ACTUAL OR ALLEGED NEGLIGENCE 
OR INTENTIONAL ACTS OR OMISSIONS; 
 

b. THE CITY’S AND CONTRACTOR’S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED 
CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS 
IMMUNE FROM LIABILITY OR NOT; AND 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (DME) - 5  

 

 
c. THE CITY’S AND CONTRACTOR’S ACTUAL OR ALLEGED 

STRICT PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STATUTORY 
LIABILITY, WHETHER CONTRACTOR IS IMMUNE FROM 
LIABILITY OR NOT. 

 
6.3 CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD THE CITY 

HARMLESS DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT AND FOR FOUR 
YEARS AFTER THE AGREEMENT TERMINATES.  CONTRACTOR’S 
INDEMNIFICATION IS LIMITED TO $500,000 PER OCCURRENCE.  
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT INDEMNIFY THE CITY FOR THE CITY’S SOLE 
NEGLIGENCE. 

 
VII. 

NOTICE 

All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed 
received when actually received or if earlier, on the third (3rd) day following deposit in the 
United States Postal Services post office or receptacle with proper postage affixed (certified 
mail, return receipt requested) addressed to the other party at the address set forth below or at 
such other addresses as the receiving party may have therefore prescribed by the notice to the 
sending party: 

 
Public Services Department   DM Electrical and Construction, LLC 
City of Alvin     Address:_____________________ 
1100 West Highway 6    ____________________________ 
Alvin, Texas 77511    Phone No.: __________________ 

 Phone No: (281) 388-4325    
 

VIII. 
GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas and, in the event of 
litigation, venue will be in Brazoria County, Texas. 
 



2018 On-Call Professional Services Agreement (DME) - 6  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this On-Call 
Professional Electrician Services Agreement in multiple copies, each of which shall be an 
original, as of this _____day of October 2018. 
 

CITY OF ALVIN, TEXAS   DM ELECTRICAL AND 
CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

                              
 
 
 

By: __________________________   By: _________________________ 
 Junru Roland                 Name: 
 City Manager                 Title:  
 
 

                
    



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 



August 23, 2018 

City of Alvin – City Hall 
City Secretary’s Office 
216 West Sealy 
Alvin, TX 77511 

RE:  DM ELECTRICAL AND CONSTRUCTION LLC, REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
CITY OF ALVIN ON-CALL PROFESIONAL ELECTRICAL SERVICES 

Dear Alvin City Secretary: 

DM Electrical is pleased to respond to the City of Alvin’s request for proposal for the ‘On-Call 
Professional Electrical Services’ maintenance agreement.  

Experience 

DM Electrical and Construction is based in Pearland, Texas and is 98% involved in commercial 
electrical contracting, and multi-residential and large custom residential electrical construction. 
David Hubbard is CEO and Master Electrician of DM Electrical. We operate with integrity and 
professionalism and are fully insured. We employ electrical journeymen and highly qualified 
electrical apprentices.  

Our experience includes the following, much of which is detailed on the attached Capability 
Statement: 

• In first year of City of Houston Electrical Maintenance Contract as of April 12, 2018. Includes
hundreds of COH properties (commercial and industrial) and its airports.

• In third year of annual renewable Houston Independent School District Electrical
Maintenance Contract.

• Previously maintained electrical systems at the Alcon complex in Fort Worth, Texas.
• Numerous new construction and renovation projects, for example:

o Pearland Medical Commons #1 (518 @ Cullen)
o City of Houston Renwick Administration Building renovation
o Houston Community College System RigOne new construction (industrial project)
o Department of Public Safety Mega Center new construction
o Box Lunch Willowbrook Mall buildout

Understanding of Role 

We understand that licensed electricians who work under a Master Electrician are needed to 
respond to electrical services calls on an ‘on-call’ basis. The scope includes, but is not limited to the 
installation, replacement and repair of electrical systems, outlets and lighting. DM Electrical is also 
available to respond to emergency calls 24/7.  We operate in a collaborative environment, practice 
safety measures and stay abreast of current electrical trends and advances to ensure work adheres 
to code. We take pride in work well done. 

Received 8/23/18 1:58 p.m.
Opened 8/23/18 2:15 p.m.
City Secretary's Office



Proposal Requirements 
 
1. Company name, address, identify out of which office electricians will be provided: 
 

DM Electrical and Construction LLC 
3630 Garrettsville Dr. 
Pearland, TX 77584 
(346) 773-4920 (office) 
(281) 404-9083 (fax) 
 

2. Name, position, phone number of primary contact person: 
 

David A. Hubbard (30+ years of experience in all phases of electrical 
design/installation/maintenance) 
CEO/Master Electrician 
(817) 504-8968 
 

3. Names of electrician(s) in the company and number of years company has been in business: 
 

DM Electrical, which was established in 2014, currently employs the following maintenance 
electricians (does not include construction crew): 
 

• David Hubbard, 37 years 
• Clinton Lee, 8 years 
• Ricardo Colunga, 10 years 
• John Saucedo, 15 years 
• Mario Ramirez, 5 years 
• Jonathon Bargas, 7 years 
• Eric Perkins, 5 years 
• Plus several other electricians  

 
4. Number of staff and titles in the office that will be working on behalf of the City: 
 

Managing the City of Alvin contract will be: 
 
Margo E. Williams 
Operations Manager 
 

5. Amount of professional liability insurance coverage carried by the company 
 

Workers’ Compensation: Statutory for Workers’ Compensation 
Employer’s Liability:  Bodily Injury by Accident: $500,000 (each accident) 
    Bodily Injury by Disease: $500,000 (policy limit) 
    Bodily Injury by Disease: $500,000 (each employee) 
Commercial GL:  Bodily injury and property damage, combined limits of $1,000,000 

each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate 
Auto Liability  $1,000,000 combined single limit for (1) any auto or (2) all owned, 

hired, and non-owned autos  
Excess Liability  $1,000,000  



 
 

 

 
6. Fee Schedule 
 

Year 1: 
 

DESCRIPTION UNIT OF MEASURE UNIT PRICE 
Standard Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $47.00 

Standard Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $47.00 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Journeyman 
Electrician) 

Hour $70.50 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $70.50 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $94.00 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $94.00 

Parts and Materials Markup Percentage 8% 
Rental of Equipment Markup Percentage 5% 

 
Year 2: 
 

DESCRIPTION UNIT OF MEASURE UNIT PRICE 
Standard Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $49.00 

Standard Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $49.00 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Journeyman 
Electrician) 

Hour $73.50 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $73.50 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $98.00 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $98.00 

Parts and Materials Markup Percentage 8% 
Rental of equipment Markup Percentage 5% 

 
  



Year 3: 
 

DESCRIPTION UNIT OF MEASURE UNIT PRICE 
Standard Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $51.00 

Standard Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $51.00 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Journeyman 
Electrician) 

Hour $76.50 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $76.50 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $102.00 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $102.00 

Parts and Materials Markup Percentage 8% 
Rental of equipment Markup Percentage 5% 

 
Year 4: 
 

DESCRIPTION UNIT OF MEASURE UNIT PRICE 
Standard Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $53.00 

Standard Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $53.00 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Journeyman 
Electrician) 

Hour $79.50 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $79.50 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $106.00 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $106.00 

Parts and Materials Markup Percentage 8% 
Rental of equipment Markup Percentage 5% 

 
  



 
 

 

Year 5: 
 

DESCRIPTION UNIT OF MEASURE UNIT PRICE 
Standard Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $56.50 

Standard Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $56.50 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Journeyman 
Electrician) 

Hour $84.75 

Overtime/Holiday Service 
Rate (Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $84.75 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Journeyman Electrician) 

Hour $113.00 

Emergency Service Rate 
(Apprentice Electrician) 

Hour $113.00 

Parts and Materials Markup Percentage 10% 
Rental of equipment Markup Percentage 8% 

 
7. Proposed arrive on-site response time: 
 

DM Electrical will respond to emergency requests immediately via phone and arrive onsite 
within an hour for life-threatening circumstances and within 2-4 hours for non-life threatening 
emergencies.  
 

8. Other items (see attached). 







 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  Engineering Contact:  Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an award of bid to Precise Services, Inc., for the South Park Drive Pavement and 

Drainage Project in an amount not to exceed $691,569.06; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the contract upon legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On September 11, 2018, bids were opened for the South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage 
Project, and Precise Services, Inc. was the qualified low bidder. Engineering Staff has verified references for 
this contractor and all references were highly satisfied with the work performed. 
 
Project Budget: $800,000 
 
Contract Amount: $658,637.20 
5% Contingency: $  32,931.86 
Total Amount: $691,569.06          ($108,430.94 below budget) 
 
The South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project consists of the total replacement of the concrete 
pavement and associated drainage improvements on South Park Drive.  These improvements were based on 
recommendations in the 2013 Concrete Pavement Assessment by JET Civil Consulting, LLC. More 
information on this project can be found in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Quarterly Report that was 
distributed to City Council on July 19, 2018. 
 
The project is scheduled to start in October 2018 and has a construction time of 75 calendar days. 
 
The $108,430.94 in excess funds will be returned to the Sales Tax Fund to be used for future street projects.  
Staff recommends approval. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:     312-5501-00-9029 Amount:    $691,569.06 1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 9/26/2018 SLH 
 
Supporting documents attached: 

• Bid Tabulation 

• Proposal 
• CIP Quarterly Report (July 19, 2018) 

 
Recommendation:   Move to award bid to Precise Services, Inc., for the South Park Drive Pavement and 

Drainage Project in an amount not to exceed $691,569.06; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the contract upon legal review. 



 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Item Description Unit Quanity Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1 Site Demolition Concrete Pavement & Curb - Complete  in 
Place - 02220 SY 5,530 $4.50 $24,885.00 $9.00 $49,770.00

2 6" Concrete Pavement - Complete in Place - 02751 SY 5,750 $52.50 $301,875.00 $54.50 $313,375.00

3 Roadway Excavation & Backfill - Complete in Place - 02316 CY 400 $15.75 $6,300.00 $100.00 $40,000.00

4 8" Lime Stabilized Subgrade 6% Lime - Complete in Place - 
02335 SY 5,746 $3.20 $18,387.20 $9.00 $51,714.00

5 Extra Commercial Lime Slurry - Complete in Place - 02335 TON 30 $210.00 $6,300.00 $250.00 $7,500.00

6 Site Demolition Concrete Driveways - Complete in Place - 
02220 SY 1,200 $9.50 $11,400.00 $9.00 $10,800.00

7 6" Concrete Driveway - Complete in Place - 02751 SY 1,200 $98.80 $118,560.00 $54.00 $64,800.00

8 Ditch Grading - Complete in Place - 02316 LF 740 $24.00 $17,760.00 $18.00 $13,320.00

9 Concrete Pavement Expansion Joints - Complete in Place - 
02770 LF 1,000 $5.75 $5,750.00 $5.00 $5,000.00

10 Crushed Stone Base for Temporary Driveways - Complete in 
Place - 02711 TON 300 $180.00 $54,000.00 $50.00 $15,000.00

11 Storm Water Prevention - Complete in Place - 01565, 01566 LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

12 Mobilization - Complete in Place - 01505 LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $34,500.00 $34,500.00

13 Concrete Saw Cut Full Depth - Complete in Place - 02751 LF 2,500 $7.50 $18,750.00 $7.88 $19,700.00

14 Traffic Control - Complete in Place - 01555 LS 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00

15 Adjust Manhole,Inlets,Valve Boxes to Grade Complete in Place EA 2 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00

16 4"x12" Concrete Lay Down Curb - Complete in Place - 02770 LF 3,530 $4.50 $15,885.00 $15.00 $52,950.00

17 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete Apron (Drainage Swale) - 
Complete In Place - 02220, 02751 SY 80 $98.00 $7,840.00 $80.00 $6,400.00

18 Pavement Marking -  24" White - Complete in Place - 02760 LF 27 $35.00 $945.00 $60.00 $1,620.00

$658,637.20 $695,449.00TOTAL BID

BID TABULATION

South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project  Precise Services  A-1 Construction 

Page 1 of 1













10/15/17 10/31/17 11/15/17 11/30/17 12/15/17 12/31/17 1/15/18 1/31/18 2/15/18 2/28/18 3/15/18 3/31/18 4/15/18 4/30/18 5/15/18 5/31/18 6/15/18 6/30/18 7/15/18 7/31/18 8/15/18 8/31/18 9/15/18 9/30/18

Design (Phase II)

Construction (90 days) Project Complete Bid Construction (75 days)

Bid Construction (contractor terminated) Construction (90 days)

Bid Construction (contractor terminated) Construction (90 Days)

Excavation by C & R #3 Bid Construction

Quote Construction Project Complete

7. Johnson Street Paving and Sidewalk Project (Design) Design Design Design

Design Design Design

Design Design Bid Construction

Design Bid Bid Construction

Design Design

12. 2018 Concrete Pavement and Drainage Project Design Bid Construction (120 days)

13. Briscoe Park Egress Road Bid Pending

14. Automated Water Meters Construction Project Complete

15. Wastewater Treatment Plant Optimization Bid Construction (480 days)
Improvements Phase II

16. Fairway and South Water Line Improvements (Design) Design

17. / 18. Lift Station 14 and 17 Rehabilitations Design

19. Lift Station 30 Expansion & Hwy. 35 Gravity Mains (Design) Design

20. 54" Eastside Interceptor  (Design) Design

21. Water Line Improvements Phase I (Design) Design

22. Northwest/Northeast Basin Sewer Survey Design

23. Water Plant #6 Tank Replacement Design

24. Wayfinding Signs Project Design

25. Blue Trails Assessment Design

26. Fire/EMS Station Assessment and Design Design

27. Willis Street Downtown Parking Lot Pending

28. Museum Expansion Construction

FY 2018 Capital Improvement Program Project Schedule - July 2018

PROJECTS:

5. Durant Detention Pond

3. 2017 Downtown Sidewalk Project

4. 2017 Sidewalk Project

1. Thoroughfare Plan Update Phase II

2. 2017 Asphalt Pavement Project (Contractor)

6. Kost Pond Beautification

10. South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project

11. FM 528 Extension (Design)

9. 2018 Sidewalk Project

8. Moller Road Storm Sewer and Pavement Improvements 
Phase I (Design)



6 5

25

28
27

26

17

23

21

21

20

19

16

18
21

15

D-4

C-1

M-1

C-
5

D-3

D-5

C-1-B

MUSTANG BAYOU

D-2

D-6

C-1-
D

D-4-F

M-6

C-1-A

M-1-B

CHIGGER CREEK

M-7

M-11

D-4-E

C-1-C

DICKINSON BAYOU

M-8

D-2-A

D-4-D

D-3-A

M-1-C

M-
1-A

M-5

C-5-A

M-11-A

M-11-B

D-4-
D-2

D-3-B

D-4-
D-3

M-10

D-4-B

M-9

M-12

M-4

M-13

D-3-D

D-3-C

D-4-D-1

M-11
-B-1

M-7-A

D-4-
E-1

D-3-B-1

D-4-
C

D-
2-B

M-7-B

FM 1462

0

FM
 52

8

W HIGHWAY 6

BYPASS 35 N

E HIGHWAY 6

N GORDON ST

BY
PA

SS
 35

 S

S GORDON ST

CLIFFORD ST

KOST RD

W ADOUE ST

S JOHNSON ST

W SEALY ST

CR
 16

0

STEELE RD

W WILLIS ST

DAV
IS BEND RD

S HOOD ST

PA
RK

ER
 SC

HO
OL R

D

E SOUTH ST

WICKWILLOW LN

S H
IG

HW
AY

 35

MUSTANG RD

OWEN ST

DICKINSON RD

VICTORY LN

UNNAMED

RO
SH

AR
ON R

D

CR 14
9

CALLAW
AY DR

RYAN DR

SHANE ST

N HIGHWAY 35

W BLUM ST

S HILL ST

BARRELL RD

W LANG ST

514

N SHIRLEY ST

BOOTH LN

TO
VR

EA
 R

D

E HOUSE ST

JEPHSON AVE

GATES RD

N SECOND ST

BARRAS ST

KO
ST

ER
 R

D

FM
 24

03

W DUMBLE ST

OLD GALVESTON RD

NELSON RD

HICKLIN ST

W PHILLIPS ST

PRIVATE

WESTFIELD ST

CR 161

STADIUM DR

LAKE LINE DR

DILLING ST

MUNSON RD

WWTP RD

E FOLEY ST

PAUL ST

CR 142

W LOBITT ST

WILDWINN DR

SKYRANCH DR

MOLLER RD

RICE ST

MAMIE FORD RD

LULAC ST

E DUMBLE ST

CLEVELAND ST

VERHALEN RD

AL
LIS

ON ST

E COOMBS ST

ROWAN-BURTON DR

MESQUITE

BRISCOE DR

NEWMAN RD

ALTA VISTA DR

S TAYLOR ST

W SOUTH ST

FAIRVIEW DR

TROON DR LASSO CT
FITZ RD

BE
NNET

T R
D

W SNYDER ST

VAN NESS DR

LU
KE DR

BAYOU DR

KENDALL CREST DR

N LEE ST

PINE ST
DELTA DR

W HOUSE ST

MIDAS LN

DECOSTER BLVD

SMITH DR

CR 424

ADAMS ST
PERRY LN

DYCHE LN

BEN DR

TERRACE DR

PARKCREST ST

S EIGHTH ST

PINTO PAS

WHEELER DR
S LEE ST

DEBBIE LN

AVENUE E 1/2

OAK PARK DR

MARY ST

N HILL ST

WESTVIEW DR

COLLEGE DR

LINDA LN

KENTINGTON DR

MORGAN ST

FOX MEADOW DR

W COOMBS ST

FALLOW LN

CHILDRESS

OXFORD RD
HEATHROW LN

STEVENWOOD LN

STALLION RDG

N BEAUREGARD ST

SHAW
 ST

RIM WATER DR

ABINGDON RD

BATES ST

WESTGLEN DR

ORMSBY ST

ALLUVIAL CIR

MAGNOLIA ST

CAMBRIDGE DR

WINDSOR SQ

BR
AZ

OS ST

FOSTER ST

MEYER ST

WI
LD

 FL
OW

ER
 LN

N FIRST ST

LE
GI

ON
 S

T

FOX RUN DR

SLADE BEN LN

N 
NI

NT
H 

ST

N JOHNSON ST

HIGHLAND SQ

CROW
N DR

BRENNEN LN

N DURANT ST

JEFFERSON ST

SULLEY DR

W SIDNOR ST

PARKWAY DR

HOBBS RD

W FOLEY ST
GEORGE ST

MANDALE RD

SMITH VILLAGE DR
N JACKSON ST

CIRCLE WAY

E HOUSE ST

UNNAMED

PR
IVA

TE

S LEE ST

UNNAMED
0

UNNAMED

S HILL ST

0

STADIUM DR

W LANG ST

0

0

PRIVATE

UNNAMED

0

0

BY
PA

SS 35
 S

0

UNNAMED

PRIVATE

PRIVATE

0

0

PR
IVA

TE

0

PRIVATE

UNNAMED

UNNAMED

PR
IVA

TE

0

UNNAMED

MUSTANG RD

0

0

BYPASS 35 N

S J
OH

NS
ON

 S
T

PRIVATE

0

PRIVATE

PRIVATE

0

0

BAYOU DR

UNNAMED

MUSTANG RD

UNNAMED

0
0

0

UNNAMED

UNNAMED

PR
IVA

TE

35

190

17
2

6

144

155

163

180

24
03

181

166

168

159

284

145

179

146

169

529

541

424

281

1462

326

143

517

16
0

133

719283

761

158

152

833

351

237

99

540

185

147

531

186

928

156

422

142

282

296

370

369

191C

266

149

367

812

737

MAIN

170

267

136

291

944

558

545

962

436

796

191

296A

138

294

949

AMOCO

WICKWILLOW

280

431

153

695A

296D

668

138E

870

947

536
150

PA
RK

ER
 SC

HO
OL

537

378

165

396

187

183

906

157

357

480

857

937

411

936

870A

368

139

305B

378B

499

138A

378A

235

960

890

424B
424A

424D

930

538

855

850

712

536A

634

962A

962
D

148

550B

423

RIVERSIDE

949B

539

164

937A

937B

965

138
B

191B

291A

928
B

138
C

98

855B

WE
BB

864

550C

855C

138D

755

695

855A 712B

949
J

712C

695B

143A

LOST RANCH

904

873

681

133A143B

FULTON

SMITH

191A

424C

953

357A

249

795

FAIRWAY

141

LARKSPUR

936A

BA
RRAS

BRITT OAKS

936C

378C

305

850A

159A

305A

TIMBERLANE

DORIS

WHITE

925A

HA
ST

ING
S

925B

813

ESQUIVEL

156A

500

SERENITY

87
0B

ROBIN

291B

87
0H

966

HERRING

FC
R 23

5

378
D

87
3A

936B

296B

529
A

296C

HILLCREST

950

RIDGEMONT

136A

892

FLORA

577

MUSTANG

HOLLIER

WALING

OWENS S/D

CRESTMONT

73
7A

PARKER-STRINGTOWN

KE
TT

LE
R

73
7B

925

FOUNTAIN

KARLIS

930A

WICKLINE

SAND PIT

930B

145

185

191

6

284

185

35

181 149

FULTON

160

185

145

FY 2018 CIP Project Location Map
Rev. Date 7/10/2018
Engineering Dept.

Map Legend
2018 CIP Project Locations

2018 CIP Streets

2018 CIP Sidewalks

13

·



Revised 7/10/2018

$800,000 $800,000 2018

$800,000 $800,000
OTHER

Currently being designed by Staff.

FISCAL YEAR

TOTAL:

Project Number:

Strategic Plan:

Funding:

Assigned:

Project Location:

Project Description:

Project Justification:

Current Status:

Impact on Operating 
Budget:

Estimated Useful Life of 
Capital Investment:

Project Type:

DESIGN
CONSTRUCTION

Streets

FUNDS 
BUDGETED

ACTUALESTIMATED

South Park Drive Pavement and Drainage Project

PROJECT COST

No

25-30 years

Maintain Infrastructure

Sales Tax Fund

City Engineer

10

This project includes the removal and replacement of concrete pavement and curbs and 
the installation of storm pipes, inlets, and manholes.

South Park Drive (off of South St. near Hood St.). Project location identified as number 
10 on the CIP project location map.

This project will replace the broken and uneven pavement and includes the installation 
of an underground storm sewer system to allow for proper drainage.



 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:   10/4/2018 

Department:  Engineering Contact:   Michelle Segovia, City Engineer  
 
Agenda Item:   Consider an award of bid to Greenscapes Six, LLC., for the 2018-2019 Concrete Repair 

Program, in an amount not to exceed $200,000 for a term of one (1) year with an option to 
renew for one (1) year with the same terms and conditions; and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the contract subject to legal review. 
 

Type of Item: ☐Ordinance  ☐Resolution  ☒Contract/Agreement  ☐Public Hearing  ☐Plat  ☐Discussion & Direction  ☐Other 

Summary:   On September 11, 2018, bids were opened for the 2018-2019 Concrete Repair Program, and 
Greenscapes Six, LLC was the qualified bidder. This Contractor has never worked on a City of Alvin project. 
Engineering Staff has verified references for this Contractor and all references were highly satisfied with the 
work performed. 
 
Project Budget: $200,000 
Total Contract Amount Including Alternate Bid Items: $179,950 
 
The 2018-2019 Concrete Repair Program utilizes the Contractor to perform point repairs on concrete streets, 
sidewalks, curbs, storm inlets, and ADA ramps at locations throughout the City as directed by the City’s Public 
Services Department. The City has bid Concrete Repair Program projects similar to this one for the last eight 
years.  Staff recommends approval. 
 

Funding Expected: Revenue ☐ Expenditure ☒ N/A ☐ Budgeted Item: Yes ☒ No ☐ N/A ☐ 

Funding Account:     312-5501-00-3410 Amount:   $179,950 1295 Form Required? Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Legal Review Required: N/A ☐ Required ☒    Date Completed: 9/26/2018 SLH 
 
 

Supporting documents attached: 

• Bid Tabulation 
• Proposal 

 
Recommendation:   Move to award bid to Greenscapes Six, LLC., for the 2018-2019 Concrete Repair 

Program, in an amount not to exceed $200,000 for a term of one (1) year with an 
option to renew for one (1) year with the same terms and conditions; and authorize 
the City Manager to sign the contract subject to legal review. 

 

Reviewed by Department Head, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by Chief Financial Officer, if applicable ☐ 

Reviewed by City Attorney, if applicable ☒  Reviewed by City Manager ☒ 

 



Page 1 of 3

Item Description Unit Quanity Unit Price Total

1 Remove and Replace 7" Concrete Pavement - Complete in 
Place - 02751 SY 500 $60.00 $30,000.00

2 Traffic Control -  Complete in Place LS 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00

3 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete Driveway - Complete in 
Place - 02751 SY 200 $55.00 $11,000.00

4 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete Curb - Complete in Place - 
02770 LF 500 $9.00 $4,500.00

5 Remove and Replace 4"x12" "Laydown" Concrete Curb - 
Complete in Place - 02770 LF 1,500 $9.00 $13,500.00

6 Remove and Replace 6" x 24" Concrete Curb and Gutter - 
Complete in Place - 02770 LF 350 $45.00 $15,750.00

7 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete Sidewalk - Complete in 
Place - 02751 SY 200 $40.50 $8,100.00

8
Remove and Replace Concrete Barrier Free Ramp (Single) 

Including Truncate Dome Detectable Warning System - 
Complete in Place - 02751

EA 5 $1,200.00 $6,000.00

9
Remove and Replace Concrete Barrier Free Ramp (Double) 

Including Truncate Dome Detectable Warning System - 
Complete in Place - 02751

EA 5 $1,300.00 $6,500.00

10 Concrete Saw Cut - Full Depth - Complete in Place - 02751 LF 1,000 $10.00 $10,000.00

11 Stabilized Sand - 1.5 Sack per Ton - Includes Excavation of 6" 
Soil Under Pavement - Complete In Place - 02252 TON 100 $60.00 $6,000.00

BID TABULATION

2018-2019 Concrete Repair Program  Greenscapes Six 



Page 2 of 3

Item Description Unit Quanity Unit Price Total

12 Mobilization For All Construction Sites - Complete In Place - 
01505 LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

13 Install 4" Concrete Sidewalk - Complete In Place - 02751 SY 200 $40.50 $8,100.00

14
Install Concrete Barrier Free Ramp (Single) Including 

Truncate Dome Detectable Warning System - Complete in 
Place - 02751

LF 5 $1,200.00 $6,000.00

15
Install Concrete Barrier Free Ramp (Double) Including 

Truncate Dome Detectable Warning System - Complete in 
Place - 02751

LF 5 $1,300.00 $6,500.00

$144,950.00

Item Description Unit Quanity Unit Price Total

16 Remove Existing Inlet - Install Cast-in-Place Type "C-C" Inlet - 
Complete In Place - 02632 EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

17 Remove Existing Inlet - Install Cast-in-Place Type "B-B" Inlet - 
Complete In Place - 02632 EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

18 Remove Existing Inlet - Install Cast-in-Place Type "B" Inlet - 
Complete In Place - 02632 EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

19 Remove Existing Inlet - Install Cast-in-Place Type "C" Inlet - 
Complete In Place - 02632 EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

20 Remove Existing Inlet - Install Cast-in-Place Type "A" Inlet - 
Complete In Place - 02632 EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

$35,000.00

$179,950.00

TOTAL BASE BID

2018 Concrete Repair Program - Alternate Bid Items

TOTAL BASE & ALTERNATE BID

TOTAL ALTERNATE BID



Page 3 of 3












	City Council Agenda 10/04/18
	Board & Commission Minutes
	Senior Board Minutes - 8/13/18

	CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council Minutes 09/20/18
	B. Ord 18-Q; Annexation MUD 48 & 49
	Ordinance 18-Q - first reading
	Exhibit A - Discontinuance Description
	Exhibit B - Annexation Property Description

	C. Ord 18-N; Impact Fee Schedule
	Ordinance 18-N

	D. Res 18-R-35; Conditions of Ft. Bend County MUD 189
	Resolution 18-R-35
	Exhibit B

	E. Bid Award; Sodium Bisulfite
	Bid Tab - Sodium Bisulfite


	OTHER BUSINESS
	A. On-Call Professional Electrical Services Agreement
	TDEC, Inc. Agreement
	Exhibit A - TDEC RFP

	DM Electrical & Construction LLC Agreement
	Exhibit A - DME RFP


	B. Bid Award - South Park Drive Pavement & Drainage
	Bid Tab
	Proposal
	CIP Quarterly Report July 19, 2018
	CIP Map
	South Park Project Sheet


	C. Bid Award; FY18-19 Concrete Repair Program
	Bid Tabulation - Concrete Repair
	Proposal





